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 SENATOR STEPHEN M. SWEENEY (Chair):  We are going 

to get started. 

 And I want to--  First, a little bit of housekeeping. 

 There is a light in front of us -- so we are respectful of 

everyone’s time -- that is a three-minute clock.  It’s green, and then it turns 

to -- what? -- yellow, and then red?  

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  At yellow, you have 30 seconds; and 

we ask people to try to wrap it up. 

 Obviously, this is an issue that a lot of people are very 

passionate about, and they should be passionate about.  There’s a great deal 

of frustration going on, right now, in this state, because of the unfairness of 

the way the formula has been administered and distributed.  And I can 

commit to you that the Senate is taking this seriously, and we are not 

letting the issue go. 

 And we have passed legislation that we know would correct the 

problem; the Assembly has not, at this point.  It’s not the Assembly, but its 

leadership.  But we are not ignoring nor letting it go.  We know that 

Middlesex County -- that every single district in Middlesex County, if the 

funding was run fairly, would receive additional aid.  And it’s very difficult 

when you’re dealing with a situation where the obvious is -- you know, it’s 

just so much in front of you and we, for some reason, can’t get to 

agreement. 

 But I’d like to start off with Senator Diegnan, and then 

Assemblyman Coughlin -- for a few words, as the hosts. 
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S E N A T O R   P A T R I C K   J.   D I E G N A N   Jr.:  And 

Assemblyman Karabinchak. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  And this beautiful facility--   

 Yes, please. 

 This beautiful facility; this is--  Thank you for allowing us, 

Middlesex County College, to host this hearing in a brand-new, state-of-the-

art building.  Middlesex County College does an outstanding job for their 

community and their residents, and you can see by the students who leave 

here. 

 Senator. 

 SENATOR DIEGNAN:  Thank you, Senate President. 

 Nothing, nothing, nothing is more important to our democracy 

than an educated population. 

 I am a walking, talking example of that.  Both my parents were 

immigrants; my dad was a milkman, my mom was a maid.  The highest 

grade they ever attained was 7th grade.  I am sitting here before you 

because of the ability to get an education. 

 Funding is--  You know, it has to be paid for.  And right now, in 

my District -- and I thank you for the chart that you submitted -- I 

calculated over a $30 million shortfall in the towns in my District under the 

present non-funding of the formula. 

 So all I can say is, thank you, Council President -- I mean, 

Senate President.  It shows where I’m normally before-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Well, we were -- we are in the Senate 

together.  (laughter) 
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 SENATOR DIEGNAN:  Well, they don’t usually let me in the 

big stuff. (laughter) 

 Thank you, Senate President, for your efforts on this 

behalf.  We really appreciate it. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Assemblyman. 

A S S E M B L Y M A N   C R A I G  J.   C O U G H L I N:  Thank you, 

Senate President. 

 And let me just take this opportunity to welcome everyone to 

Middlesex County, and to what I think is one of the finest community 

colleges in the state.  This is--  All you need to do is walk across the parking 

lot today to see the vibrancy of this campus.  It’s alive, and energetic, and it 

does just a wonderful job at educating, in an affordable way, students from 

throughout Middlesex County. 

 So welcome, and thank you. 

 And I’d like to commend the Senate President and members of 

the Committee for your leadership on this issue.  This is something whose 

time has come.  You know, we all know that education is the backbone of 

the middle class and, therefore, of the United States.  And public education 

is something that I think we ought to be really proud of here in the State of 

New Jersey.  Sometimes I don’t think we take enough pride. 

 Year, after year, after year, New Jersey’s public education 

system ends up in the top three of states throughout the country:  You 

know, it’s Maryland, Massachusetts, and New Jersey one year; and New 

Jersey, Massachusetts, and Maryland the next. 
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 We ought to take pride in that; and we ought to take pride in 

the investment that we make.  And we all know that we have a 

constitutional and, I think, more importantly, a moral duty to make sure 

that each and every student in the State of New Jersey has the opportunity 

to succeed. 

 But we also have a duty to taxpayers.  And we have to make 

sure that the education that we provide is not just thorough and efficient, 

but effective and affordable.   

 And so I commend you for undertaking this.  This is going to 

be a tough issue.  There are a lot of twists and turns; there are a lot of 

people who will perceive themselves as benefiting, and others who will 

perceive themselves as losing in this process. But it’s something whose time 

has come, and whose attention is demanded by this Committee.  And I 

thank you for doing that. 

 You know, I have the great fortune of representing the 19th 

Legislative District, which includes Woodbridge, and Sayreville, South 

Amboy, Perth Amboy, and Carteret.  And as you pointed out, Senate 

President, all of those districts would be, under the current definition of the 

school funding formula, underfunded; particularly the largest town in my 

District, Woodbridge -- which is, I think, on the last chart I saw, something 

like the third-most or fourth-most underfunded district in the state; 

something to the tune of $50 million. 

 So while Woodbridge and all the other towns are certain to be 

willing to pay their fair share, we have a duty to make sure that they get 

their fair share as well. 
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 And so I thank you for embarking on this, and I’m confident 

that you’re going to come up with something that is really effective and 

works.  And I hope to get to be part of the solution to this problem. 

 So thank you very much for coming; I know there are a lot of 

other people who have a lot to say.  And so I’ll just -- I’ll end by saying, 

enjoy your day in Middlesex County. 

 And lunch is on Pat Diegnan. (laughter)  

 So thank you very much. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  You know what his middle name is?   

 ASSEMBLYMAN COUGHLIN:  Jay. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Crime -- he doesn’t pay. 

 Who’s next? 

 Assemblywoman. 

 You need this mike. 

A S S E M B L Y W O M A N   N A N C Y  J.   P I N K I N:  Oh, thank 

you. 

 Well, thank you, Senator Sweeney, and members of the panel, 

for coming to Middlesex County and to one of my alumni (sic), Middlesex 

County College. 

 And, you know, I put myself through school, so I know how 

difficult it is for -- paying for education today. 

 But one of the issues -- which is a major issue for our residents 

in Middlesex County and everybody across the state -- is property taxes.  So 

how do we continue to fund our top educational systems, but deal with the 

property tax issue?  I know that it’s something that you, Senator, have been 
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addressing in your efforts to regionalize services in your area.  But we have 

to come to some resolution. 

 We were having a conversation -- the three of us -- yesterday, 

about what we can do about the property taxes.  It’s a big issue in our 

school districts; we know that the number of kids who are eligible for school 

lunch is actually increasing.  Even though Middlesex County is a high-

income county, relatively, we still have many people who are really suffering 

from the economy and struggling for jobs.  We did a job fair -- a couple of 

job fairs, just trying to leverage all the services that we have through the 

County services and through the educational systems -- the school systems.  

So it’s a really big problem, 

 We have the issue, also, of equitable funding.  We think the 

school funding formula should be fully funded, and I know that’s a 

challenge when you have a state with such a big deficit.  I think we have to, 

realistically, take an approach as if we were going -- as if we were in a 

foreclosure.  We have to come up with a fiscal plan; and start working on it, 

and start digging ourselves out of the hole, a little at a time.  We can’t -- we 

can no longer ignore this crisis with the property taxes.  And I know it’s 

something that you’ve been a champion of, and we’re very happy about 

that. 

 So we do have one issue with the charter schools; we have a 

charter school in our town.  While we support having it now, it has kids 

who are coming--  Originally when that charter school started, East 

Brunswick had to fund all of the payment burden -- all of the students, even 

though they’re coming from over 20 districts.  And these kids are being 

bussed for very long periods; five different counties that they are coming 
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from.  And it just seems like, you know, at some point, we have to address 

that.  While we are supportive of charter schools in innovative areas, we just 

can’t have everything we want.  And so that funding is another issue that 

we have to deal with. 

 But thank you so much, again, for bringing this issue to a head 

and trying to come up with a realistic way to deal with it. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Assemblyman. 

A S S E M B L Y M A N   R O B E R T   J.  K A R A B I N C H A K:  I’d 

like to thank you, Senate President, and the rest of the Committee for 

taking on this issue; for coming and listening to everybody’s own personal 

pieces to this puzzle. 

 School funding is obviously a complex situation across the 

whole entire state.  Being in the 18th District -- and Edison being the 

biggest town in this District -- we have been underfunded by over $23 

million every single year since this school funding formula has even been in 

place. 

 When you look at the whole District, as Senator Diegnan said, 

we’re over $30 million.  And listening to what Assemblyman Coughlin said  

-- Woodbridge being over $50-some million -- it’s just unfair. 

 And that all relates to our taxpayers, as Assemblywoman Pinkin 

was talking about.  Obviously, this isn’t easy; otherwise, it would have been 

done. 

 I think that just the school funding formula is the first step of 

this.  There are other issues that, I think, have to be addressed all across the 

whole entire state.  And as I always say, the devil is always in the 
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details.  This is just the first step.  There is a lot more that has to be 

addressed, across the state, on how this is going to work, so that there are 

certain districts, and urban towns, and cities that aren’t going to be 

negatively affected dramatically.  Because there are needs there, also; that, 

as a state, we have to look at everyone, not just our own particular town. 

 So with that being said, anything that I can do to help--  I know 

our District, I know our Senators, I know a lot of people in the Assembly 

who want to bring this up and talk about it.  We want to have a very good 

conversation; and even a heated conversation would be good.  We’re just 

not having that opportunity right now.  I know myself, I know the other 

Assembly people who I’m sitting next to, want this to happen.  So we’re 

going to try to do everything we possibly can to make this happen. 

 And anything we can do for you, the Committee, to make 

this  -- move this forward, it would be our honor. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Well, Assemblyman, I appreciate that. 

 And to address something that Assemblyman Coughlin talked 

about.  You know, people are saying that there is going to be losers in 

this.  There aren’t any losers.  If everyone is at 100 percent, how can you be 

a loser?  People are saying we’re dividing communities, right now, by having 

this discussion.  What’s going on is dividing the communities, because of 

the reality of what’s taking place in education funding today.  We’re not 

dividing anyone; it’s what the Legislature did in 2008 when they 

implemented hold-harmless and enrollment caps.   

 Look, there are more issues in education funding.  Special 

education funding needs to be addressed; there are many -- there are other 
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aspects.  But there are two glaring issues; and hold-harmless and enrollment 

caps have -- are what really set off the imbalance. 

 So we in the Senate, in a very bipartisan way--  And I was 

proud that we had 18 of the 23 Democrats who were present; and if the 

24th Democrat would have been there, it would been 19.  And 11 out of 16 

Republicans voted together, recognizing that this isn’t an easy fix; and this 

is a tough thing that we need to do.  But for the mayors, and the school 

boards, and for the children, more importantly, it’s time. 

 Now, we passed our bill two months ago -- over two months 

ago -- and nothing happened.  We’re not letting this issue linger any 

longer.  The hearings are to keep pressure -- we know we need to fix it -- is 

to keep pressure on the Legislature, right up until this budget, to address it 

and correct it in this budget.  And that’s what we’re going to do.  One way 

or another, this is getting addressed. 

 And this is a tough issue, it’s an election year issue, you always 

hear it’s hard.  But I have to tell you, it’s enough delay.  And to talk to 

Mayor McCormack and explain to him why his town has to be paying $50 

million more -- their taxpayers.  Or to think about Newark -- I see Senator 

Rice in the audience -- where it’s short-changed $90 million.  It’s not 

fair.  This isn’t urban against suburban; this is we, together, can fix this, and 

need to fix this -- not Republican-Democrat.  Like I said, this is 

bipartisan.  This Committee we put together is equal numbers.  Senator 

Pennacchio is the Co-Chair of the Committee.  And we’re doing it because 

it’s not -- we’re not going to let the politics get in front of what the policy 

needs to be. 
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 So I really appreciate the fact that so many legislators are 

here.  Look, we’re going to bring fairness, one way or another; either the 

hard way or the easy way, but it’s not going away. 

 But thank you for being here. 

 SENATOR DIEGNAN:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN KARABINCHAK:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  We’re going to be calling groups by 

panels.  And who am I starting with? 

 Dr. Heelan, Edison Township Board of Education President; 

Mr. Richard Brescher, a member of the Edison Board of Education; Dr. 

Rocco Tomazic, Superintendent, Freehold Borough School District; and 

Mr. Joseph Howe, School Business Administrator, Freehold Borough School 

District. 

 And if I butcher your names -- I’ve never been good with 

names; I apologize. (laughter)  Ask Senator Diegnan; sometimes I get it 

right, sometimes I don’t.  But he knows I’m talking to him. (laughter)  

 SENATOR OROHO:  Well, ask Senator Holzapfel.  

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Hol -- what?  (laughter)  I’m never 

getting that name right. 

 But if you could be -- try to--  We’ll be respectful, too, of your -- 

as you testify.  But to the best of your ability, try to stay within the time 

allotments that we give. 

 And with that, whoever wants to start off. 

 If you please. 

F R A N K   H E E L A N,   Ed. D.:  Thank you very much. 
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 I appreciate the initiative that you have taken, Senator 

Sweeney; and certainly to bring 20 percent of the Senate here to Edison to 

listen to our plea of woe. 

 And certainly, all of--  To Senator Diegnan, thanks for coming 

and expressing it as well; and Assemblyman Rob Karabinchak, and Nancy 

Pinkin, and also Mr. Coughlin. 

 The Edison Board of Education would like to draw your 

attention to a critical issue: funding for our schools. 

 Nearly 16,000 students attend our schools every day, making 

us the fourth-largest district in the state; we out (indiscernible) the 

others.  However, in terms of funding, we are among districts receiving the 

lowest fraction of our fair share, 37.8 percent -- a little more than a third of 

what we -- the SFRA entitlement.  According to the SFRA formula, Edison 

should have received $37 million for 2016-2017.  The District was given 

$14 million in State aid, thereby depriving our students and taxpayers of 

$23 million. 

 We present below some of the key points the State must 

consider in strategizing school funding. 

 First bullet:  Funding for districts must increase in accordance 

with the previous year’s October 15 enrollment.  That is critical.  The 

enrollment in many school districts has decreased since 2008; yet the State 

funding continued to increase for those districts.  Edison has had a 12.4 

percent increase in enrollment since 2008 -- that’s, like, 1,900 more 

students we have that we’re not getting anything for.  In September 2016, 

over 500 additional students registered in our schools, just in this year 
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alone.  However State aid per student in Edison has continued to decline 

since 2008. 

 Next bullet:  Three districts had a higher enrollment than 

Edison in 2016-17, and received on average 15 times the State aid per 

student than Edison.  Newark received $14,600, basically, actual aid per 

student; Jersey City was awarded $13,600 aid per student; and Paterson 

was given $14,400.  As the fourth-largest district in New Jersey, Edison got 

$951 actual aid per student, the lowest of the 17 districts with 10,000-plus 

enrollment. 

 Next bullet:  Edison’s schools are severely overcrowded -- built 

in the 1950s, most of them.  The New Jersey Department of Education uses 

the Facilities Efficiency Standard, the FES, to analyze school building 

capacity.  The FES capacity at J.P. Stevens High School was 1,237; the total 

enrollment, however, stood at 2,340 during 2016; almost double.  Edison 

High School’s FES capacity is 956, but the enrollment during 2016 reached 

1,947, more than double what is safe for the students.  Edison taxpayers 

cannot afford another high school without additional State aid. 

 Next bullet:  Low income is not restricted to a limited number 

of districts, but is spread throughout the state, as you well know.  Most 

elementary schools in Edison are Title 1 schools, with 20 to 40 percent free 

lunch; and one school has over 40 percent free lunch. 

 Next bullet:  The 56 percent of property taxes in Edison is 

earmarked for the schools; in favored districts, less than 25 percent of the 

property taxes is allocated to the schools. 

 And finally, as you all know, adjustment aid or hold-harmless 

aid -- ensuring that no district would receive less State aid than the amount 
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previously received -- is intrinsically inequitable.  I repeat:  Adjustment aid 

is intrinsically inequitable.  To be fair, adjustment aid must be abolished. 

 We welcome you to take a tour of our schools so you can 

experience the magnitude of our severely overcrowded schools: students 

injuring themselves by involuntarily bumping into each other passing in our 

hallways, some students eating lunch at their desks, or going to their 

classrooms in a trailer. 

 Finally, we implore the State to focus, urgently, on school 

funding; and have the heart, the courage of a lion, which I know you must 

have to get it through -- and I appreciate what you’re doing -- to embark 

upon a more just system so that students in Edison, and other school 

districts, are not being shortchanged.  

 Thank you for listening. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Any questions for the panel? (no response) 

 If not, also, the first person up always gets to go longer; not by 

choice, it happens.  But again, we’ll ask you if you can pay attention to the 

time. 

 And for the record, we need your name, for the record, because 

it’s public. 

 DR. HEELAN:  Dr. Frank Heelan, H-E-E-L-A-N; President of 

the Board of Education for Edison School District. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Doctor. 

 Who’s next? 
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R I C H A R D   B R E S C H E R:  I’d like to thank the Senator, and the 

Committee; and our local Assemblypeople and Senators for coming out and 

supporting this issue. 

 In Edison, I’ve reviewed the-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  We need your name, again; I’m sorry. 

 MR. BRESCHER:  Oh; my name is Richard Brescher-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thanks for--  

 MR. BRESCHER:  --Edison, New Jersey, Board of Education. 

 In reviewing the equitable State aid, we’ve concluded that there 

is no continuity in the funding formula.  In evaluating the funding formula 

that the State uses, the State’s own numbers recognize that Edison should 

receive $33 million in equalized aid; yet we receive only $4.5 million in 

equalized aid’s stabilized aid. 

 The equalized, stabilized aid is based upon a percentage of 

funds that are allocated every year.  And that number is the same number 

that they use from the year prior.  So if Edison was underfunded in 1990 -- 

which, when I went back, we’ve been underfunded since 1990 -- the State 

has continued to use that same number.  It can only go up or down if the 

fund is fully funded.  Since it’s never been fully funded, Edison has never 

been able to actually catch up. 

 So when we talk about not hurting other districts -- and I hear 

that because they’re going to have to take a reduction -- they haven’t taken 

a reduction since 2008.  So all that’s happened is that the pain that was put 

there is continued on our Township and many others, where we just 

continue and we don’t receive anything more, and they’re not receiving 
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anything less.  And it really is time to say that this funding formula doesn’t 

work after eight years now. 

 I thank you for your time, and I hope that you work hard on 

this. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Who’s next? 

R O C C O   G.   T O M A Z I C,   Ed. D.:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  You need to use this mike. (indicates) 

 DR. TOMAZIC:  Thank you, Senator. 

 My name is Rocco Tomazic; the Superintendent of Freehold 

Borough. 

 With me is Joseph Howe, my Business Administrator.  I’ll be 

speaking for both of us in one session. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Okay; great. 

 DR. TOMAZIC:  Mr. Chairman, thank you for allowing me 

this opportunity to speak to the Committee on school funding.  And thank 

you, as well, for the leadership in attempting to break the school funding 

status quo which has, for too long, allowed a grossly inequitable distribution 

of State resources. 

 I lead the Freehold Borough Public Schools, the third-most 

underfunded school district in New Jersey.  We’re proud of our students, 

and we have a great faculty.  But I am distressed that my students are not 

receiving the necessary resources for a proper education; and that, year after 

year, we’ve cut more and more of their support as expenses increase and 

funding remains flat. 
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 This is all the more infuriating when one sees that there are 

districts flush with cash, providing a multitude of extra services to their 

students, as well as a healthy dose of tax relief to their taxpayers.  This is 

not fair, this is not right, and we begin to wonder if it is even legal, 

considering the disparate impact on protected groups of students.  What is 

probably the most amazing fact in this whole situation is that resolving the 

worst of the disparity wouldn’t require one more dollar in taxes. 

 The School Funding Reform Act of 2008, if it were fully 

funded, would bring Freehold Borough $13.3 million.  My class sizes, right 

now, are over capacity, because I need 50 teachers.  So I can’t provide the 

necessary support to special education students or to English Language 

Learner students; I have to shut down my libraries; and I have no teachers 

for basic skills math, technology is restrained, and my median teacher pay is 

the lowest in the state. 

 So who’s responsible for this?  I know it’s not my Freehold 

Borough taxpayers, because they are already $2.3 million over what they are 

supposed to be paying.  And we’ve taken every dollar that we could take, 

since 2011.  There’s no banked cap; and the reason that we’re in such a dire 

strait is no mystery.  We’ve been essentially held flat since 2010, while our 

student population has exploded.  

 Sadly, the situation is not uncommon around the state, even if 

Freehold Borough is the most extreme example.  But one wonders why the 

imbalance has to be continued at all.  The School Funding Reform Act of 

2008 -- specifically, in N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-52 -- allowed that the equalization 

aid would be distributed proportionally, if there wasn’t enough.  But that 

hasn’t been done. 
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 I think, personally, that every Superintendent in the state 

would be delighted if SFRA were funded.  But if that can’t be done, for 

whatever reason, then many of us would think that the existing money 

should be divided proportionally, per the formula.  And if that can’t be 

done, for whatever reason, then new money has to be sent to the most 

extreme cases of underfunding so that we can work that problem. 

 But sadly, even that hasn’t been done very well.  There’s 

currently only $16.7 million for this purpose in the State budget, which 

represents two-tenths of 1 percent of the total funded in the state. 

 So the day-to-day leaders of our school districts, like myself -- 

we struggle with underfunding.  We made the case for equity and fairness 

under the law, but we’ve been unsuccessful in changing how the money 

arrives in the districts. 

 In Freehold Borough, last week, we were told by our broker that 

our insurance costs for health benefits would go up 15 percent next year.  If 

later this month I’m again flat-funded, that means I have to start cuts on an 

already bare-bones budget. 

 Freehold Borough is also part of a loose coalition of 

Superintendents that have been discussing what to do.  We’ve written the 

Governor and the Commissioner of Education; we’ve testified before the 

Assembly, and we’re testifying here; and we’re also discussing what we 

might be able to do through the Judicial Branch.  Because, quite frankly, 

we’re in a hole, and we can’t get out of it, and we have to do something to 

resolve the situation. 

 Freehold Borough, and districts like us -- when I say like us, 

meaning that we’re under adequate in State aid, over our fair share in taxes, 
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and receiving no hold-harmless money -- we need relief now.  We’re backed 

into a corner and our school children are adversely impacted.  We applaud 

this Committee’s stated purpose to fix it, and we will do anything that we 

can to help in that regard. 

 Thank you.  

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Anyone from the panel? 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Yes, I-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Yes, Senator. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Yes, I just -- before the gentlemen 

leave-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Please. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  I just want to make a brief comment. 

 I hear you loud and clear.  You know, I got an Excel 

spreadsheet -- maybe I shouldn’t say this, but I got it from the Treasury 

Department -- what each town pays in income tax into New Jersey.  You 

can see, town by town, what the total income tax going into Trenton 

is.  And that becomes our school fund.  And people in New Jersey complain 

because we get 61 cents back on the dollar for every dollar we send to the 

Federal government.  But many of our towns -- like Edison and Freehold 

Borough -- they don’t get sent back 61 cents on the dollar for school 

funding; they get back -- I’ve seen a penny, 5 cents.   

 So our current funding formula -- it doesn’t even account, in 

my opinion, for how much you send in, in income tax -- your 

residents.  Actually, it punishes you, because it totally puts the blinders up, 

“We don’t want to know how much comes in” -- until it has this pot of 
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money, and then suddenly it says, “Oh, you sent in a lot of money?  We’re 

going to punish you by sending you back even less.”  And that’s one of the 

categories in the funding formula. 

 So there are tremendous inequities.  And folks need to realize 

there are two sides of the ledger: there’s how you collect the money and 

how you distribute the money.  And most of this discussion, here, is how 

we’re going to distribute the money.  I do think we need to focus, to some 

extent, on where the money comes from.  We shouldn’t punish folks 

because they happen to pay more into the system, which is what happens 

now. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Anyone--  I’d like to add one thing. 

 The purpose of these hearings, too, is not to let the issue 

go.  You have families, communities; you have the children, right?  You 

have their families.  Pressure has to be turned up, the heat has to be turned 

up; not just let it go, you know what I mean?  Normally, people hit a 

boiling point, and they say, “Ah, it’s never going to happen; I give up.”  If 

we don’t give up, we’re going to win. 

 So I would ask you to continue to keep pressure, where it needs 

to be, to advance this.  That’s why we’re here. 

 Thank you. 

 DR. TOMAZIC:  Thank you, Senators. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Next panel, Melanie Schulz, Director 

of Government Relations, New Jersey Association of School Administrators; 

Dr. G. Kennedy Greene, Superintendent, Newton School District; and Mr. 

Gerald W. Tamburro, Mayor of Monroe Township, Middlesex. 
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 Oh, I’m sorry.  Can I--  I forgot.  May I have Senator 

Greenstein and Assemblyman Benson speak first, if that’s okay?  

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Sure. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  And then we’ll bring you up.  I 

apologize; I had an order that I didn’t follow. (laughter) 

S E N A T O R   L I N D A   R.   G R E E N S T E I N:   Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Also I want to thank Senator Kean for 

being here today.  He’s also in attendance; as well as Senator Rice.  Senator 

Kean worked with me in a bipartisan -- very bipartisan fashion to pass the 

legislation that we did in the Senate that--  When they say it can’t get done, 

we surprise people at times.  And even this Committee -- this was a 

unanimous vote in the Senate to even do this Committee.  And it was the 

coordination and a cooperation of Senator Kean and myself that made this 

equally staffed. 

 So Senator Kean, thank you for being here. 

S E N A T O R   T H O M A S   H.   K E A N   Jr.: (off mike)  Thanks, 

Steve. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Senator Greenstein, if you’d like to 

start. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Thank you, Senate President. 

 First of all, I want to start by thanking you and the Committee 

for your leadership on this, and the determination to get something done. 

 I can say that I’ve spent the better part of my Senate career -- 

and also my earlier Assembly career -- trying to push for school funding 

changes, along with my colleagues, Assemblymen DeAngelo and 

Benson.  We have worked very hard on this.  The number of meetings can’t 
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be counted; and I know we had at least one, or two, or three in your office 

where we brought in some of our Monroe people.  And we’ve been -- we put 

legislation in, and we’ve--  I’m just so glad to see the approach that you are 

putting forth. 

 First of all, under this approach, Middlesex County would gain 

$284 million on top of the $562 million it currently receives, much of it in 

enrollment growth.  Every school district would gain in the 14th 

District.  All eight districts gain, in both formula funding and enrollment 

growth, a total of $43 million. 

 While the funding would be phased in over five years to get to 

the 100 percent formula funding, it would take longer to fully fund 

enrollment growth.  But this is an affordable and fair way to ramp up to full 

funding and ensure that every taxpayer and every school child is treated 

fairly. 

 Monroe is an example -- an extreme example -- of heavy 

enrollment; and you’ll hear all about it shortly -- a lot of growth, little 

school funding, and a large retired population.  We need to provide help to 

Monroe and similarly situated communities.  We really appreciate what 

you’re doing here and what we’ll all do shortly. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Senator. 

 Assemblyman. 

A S S E M B L Y M A N   D A N I E L   R.  B E N S O N:  Thank you, 

Senate President, and members of the Committee. 

 It’s a pleasure to address you today.  There is probably no more 

important topic that we could be addressing. 
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 As you said, it’s so important to keep the pressure on.  I know 

when I talk in all of our communities in the 14th district, this is on the tips 

of everyone’s tongues; they want to see change, and they don’t want to see 

it when we get the next Governor or anything else.  We can’t wait for the 

next Governor; we need change now.   

 And I want to just say thank you, personally, for the work 

you’re doing to keep that reform effort going. 

 I grew up in Hamilton Township; went to a public high school, 

graduated from Hamilton West, the same high school my father and his 

two brothers graduated from, same high school my grandmother and great-

aunt graduated from.  I have seen what underfunding has done throughout 

the 14th District.  As you said, the hold-harmless, I think, has been a 

disaster for many communities.  The enrollment caps have particularly 

affected those who have seen enrollment growth. 

 But you’ll hear from our district, here in Monroe, that has been 

uniquely victimized by the current situation.  Whether it’s an enrollment 

that has grown by 25 percent since 2008 without any equalization aid in 

the last 10 years; as well as a misperception of wealth, particularly in a 

community that is 60 percent age-restricted communities, and has a 

majority of those residents on fixed incomes. 

 Again, the way the formula is being implemented now, Monroe 

is treated as if it’s some rich district.  And if you talk to our residents and 

you hear from our residents, you’ll know that that’s not the case. 

 And so we need that change to the betterment of our 

communities all across the 14th.  But I am so happy that we have Monroe 
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here, which I think has a unique circumstance that we hopefully can address 

in this reform. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR GREENSTEIN:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Assemblyman. 

 Anyone? (no response) 

 If not-- 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Chair, just real quick. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Senator Oroho. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  While the next group comes up-- 

 We can bring the next group up. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  I just want to mention for the panel, Dr. 

Tomazic actually gave us a great -- on attachment No. 3--  You know, I’ve 

been talking about the geographic cost-factor all along, and he shows you 

the formula itself; and the thing that is referred to as the GCF is Geographic 

Cost Factor -- in every single category.  I just wanted to point that out to the 

panel, because I know that’s been something I’ve been harping on for a long 

time.  It shows you, specifically, how it affects every category. 

 So anyway, I just wanted to point that out. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Senator. 

 I’m going to start with the Mayor; Mayor, if you would like to 

start. 

M A Y O R   G E R A L D   W.   T A M B U R R O:   Thank you, 

Senator. 

 I’m Gerald Tamburro; I’m the Mayor of Monroe Township in 

Middlesex County. 
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 Senator, I want to thank you; Senator Greenstein; and our 

complete Assembly, Assemblyman Benson and Assemblyman DeAngelo. 

 Monroe Township is one of the fastest growing municipalities 

in New Jersey.  In the last seven years, Monroe Township has issued 2,153 

certificates of occupancy for new residential construction, with 1,058 of 

those being age-restricted.  Now, with the recent affordable housing court 

settlement, over 4,000 additional residential housing units will be built over 

the next 20 years; and only 700 can be age-restricted, in compliance with 

the requirements of the Act and our court settlement. 

 Public school enrollment, in the same seven-year period, has 

skyrocketed from 5,500 students to over 6,600 students; or a 20 percent 

growth.  Despite an increase in enrollment of over 300 students this past 

year, our State aid only increased $15,000.  That funds one student out of 

300; or more easily stated, $50 a student.  

 It is anticipated that 300 new students will be added in each of 

the next five years.  The amount of State aid received in the same period 

has been devastating to our taxpayers.  Instead of getting an increased 

amount of State aid, the exact opposite has taken place.   

 Using the baseline 2009-2010 school year -- before the mid-

year reduction -- the Township School District and taxpayers have 

sustained a cumulative loss of over $16 million in State aid for our public 

schools.  With the State-imposed affordable housing mandates and the lack 

of builder impact fees in New Jersey, local officials are rendered almost 

defenseless in slowing the residential growth. 

 Despite the lack of support from the State and its housing 

mandates, the municipal government has partnered with our District 
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officials by introducing the following initiatives to slow down the growth 

and its impact on the schools. 

 We have purchased over 5,000 acres of open space, and over 

1,000 acres of preserved farmland, with more on the drawing board; we 

have a large inventory of age-restricted housing; increased 6-acre zoning to 

10-acre zoning in parts of the Township; the Township has partnered with 

the Board of Education on several shared services initiatives and capital 

improvements; the Township expended over $1 million and provided other 

open space property to secure 30 acres for our Township high school; the 

Township provided 30 acres of developer-donated land for construction of a 

new elementary school.   

 In spite of our past and continuing efforts by the municipal 

government, our Board of Education and the students in the District have 

suffered from being underfunded by the State.  During the past 12 months, 

we have met with Senate President Sweeney, the Commissioner of 

Education, and our local legislative delegation to explore a different 

approach for the State to assist the underfunded school districts, such as 

Monroe, for more equitable school funding. 

 Now is the time for action.  The taxpayers and the State’s 

children deserve and demand it.  In central New Jersey alone, the disparity 

in State aid is outrageous.  Is it fair that neighboring Old Bridge receives 

$45 million in State aid, and our schools in Monroe receive $3.3 

million?  Is it fair that growth municipalities are not getting their fair share 

of school aid, while stable and non-growth districts get larger increases? 

 The hold-harmless clause, for the 31 school districts in the 

State, is a misnomer.  Those districts with declining student enrollment are 
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receiving disproportionate and additional State aid at the expense of 

growing school districts, such as Monroe.  It is not harmless but, instead, 

harmful. 

 The school funding formula in New Jersey is broken, and a 

more equitable distribution is needed -- one that meets the needs of the 

growing suburban districts that are presently underfunded, as well as meets 

the constitutional and court mandate of a thorough and efficient education.  

 I implore the Governor and Legislature to examine the funding 

formula and provide a fair and equitable funding formula for all of New 

Jersey’s children and taxpayers.  

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Mayor. 

 We’ll let everyone speak, and then I’ll ask the panel if they 

want to speak. 

 MAYOR TAMBURRO:  Senator, if I may. 

 Our Business Administrator, Wayne Hamilton, is here. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Okay. 

 MAYOR TAMBURRO:  Unfortunately, Wayne is retiring and I 

have to go and interview prospective business administrators. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Understood. 

 MAYOR TAMBURRO:  Thank you for your time.  

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Whoever is next. 

 Please. 

M E L A N I E   S C H U L Z:  Good morning, Senate President Sweeney. 
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 My name is Melanie Schulz; I’m Director of Government 

Relations at the New Jersey Association of School Administrators. 

 I would like to thank you, not only for inviting us here today, 

but also to acknowledge that we’ve been part of the conversations with you 

for the past year on school finance. 

 The 2016-2017 school year theme of our Association is One 

Vision -- Our Voice.  Never before can I recall a time when Chief School 

Administrators have been more engaged and encouraged to use their voice 

to be part of shaping a fair and equitable distribution of State funds. 

 Our goal is to provide you and your colleagues with not only 

the effects of funding decisions over the past several years, but also to bring 

you possible solutions as you begin to craft a new funding mechanism. 

 Now I’d like to turn the mike over to Dr. Ken Greene, who is 

the Superintendent of the Newton School District, and an officer of 

NJASA.  Dr. Greene has put together a presentation that we hope will not 

only provide you with useful background information, but assist you as you 

move forward in examining the inequities of the current manner in which 

our school districts receive funding. 

 Thank you so much. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

G.   K E N N E D Y   G R E E N E,   Ed. D.:  Thank you, Melanie; and 

thank you Senator Sweeney and Senators for inviting our participation 

here. 

 I also want to thank Senator Rice while he’s here; and 

Assemblywoman Jasey for accepting our testimony at the Joint Committee 
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of the Public Schools; as well as Assemblywoman Caride for inviting us to 

participate at the Assembly Education hearings. 

 You’re going to hear from many districts today about their 

specific circumstances; and I think it’s really important that you do, because 

each one brings a little bit different to the table. 

 I’m going to scope it back out, looking at the state as a whole, 

and make a few points. 

 You do have my presentation there; I’m not going to go 

through each aspect of the presentation, but I’m going to hit a couple of 

slides that I think are particularly important. 

 As you’ve heard from many speakers, perhaps previous to 

today, the funding formula that we have is actually a good formula.  It’s 

nationally considered a leader; it’s recognized as a model of equity and 

fairness; and of course, it’s passed constitutional muster here in New Jersey. 

 Certainly, we can look at tweaks to the formula.  There are 

aspects of it that could be improved.  It’s already been noted -- special 

education and the census method for special education; Senator Oroho has 

talked about the Geographic Cost Factor and how that negatively impacts 

districts.  So there clearly are areas that can be tweaked. 

 But also, clearly, the biggest issue is with the funding of the 

formula itself.  And so I would turn your attention to -- I think it’s slides, 

maybe, No. 10 to 12; they are the first slides you encounter with graphs, 

charts.  To talk about -- that there are two problems, in terms of funding, as 

I think we know.  One is an underfunding problem; and the total 

underfunding problem -- of not having enough funds to the formula -- is 

$1.4 billion.  Frequently you hear the number $1 billion thrown out.  The 
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$1 billion is a cap aid number; and cap aid is only important to discuss if, in 

fact, we were going to address the entire problem right now and caps would 

be in place. 

 The uncapped number of $1.4 billion is where I think most 

thinking people are thinking, “This is going to have to happen over time,”  

so the caps won’t be relevant; $1.4 billion is the entirety of the problem. 

 The other problem is the $600 million problem, in terms 

of  inequitable distribution.  Underfunding, though, and where those charts 

come in, is found all across the state.  All enrollments levels -- you see the 

enrollment, there, of small districts, medium, large districts -- it impacts all 

sizes of districts. 

 The next slide talks about how underfunding is found in all 

income groups.  You look at the bottom there, it shows you the District 

Factor Groups from A through J; every single District Factor Group has a 

majority of its members -- above 50 percent of those districts are receiving 

less than 100 percent of their State aid.  There is one example that doesn’t 

follow this; it’s 49 percent.  It’s half or more. 

 And then on the next page, underfunding is found in all 

geographic regions of the state -- whether it’s north, central, or south.  This 

is not a localized problem; it’s a huge problem across the state. 

 If you go a couple of slides later, you’re going to see some 

tables; and one of the tables -- the first of those talks about local 

taxation.  And of course, one of the myths that we have in New Jersey is 

that we have high property taxes; everybody has high property taxes.  That’s 

actually not true.  Not certainly according to how the formula defines local 

fair share.  And this table shows for you the number of districts that are 
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contributing above a 100 percent of their local fair share, and others that 

are contributing below.  And it’s a wide disparity.  We’re not showing that 

as neatly around 100 percent, which would be the goal. 

 The next slide talks about budget adequacy; and something that 

you’re going to hear in other testimony, perhaps, is how important budget 

adequacy is, and that we can’t redistribute adjustment aid if a district is 

under adequacy.  Well, a district could be under adequacy for one of two 

reasons: either because they’re not receiving enough State aid -- and of 

course, if they’re overfunded, that’s not the case.  If you’re receiving 100 

percent of your State aid, the only other possibility is that it’s a local tax 

issue, and that there’s an inadequacy of local taxes being paid.  So that 

needs to be paid attention to. 

 And then the final table talks about how New Jersey might be 

graded for its funding and distribution of State aid.  We use a grading 

mechanism that you’re probably all familiar with -- or at least those of my 

vintage or older -- the old, traditional 7-point scale: 93 to 100 is an A; 85-

92 is a B.  And 234 of our districts -- you’re treating them to an A, by 

providing them somewhere between 93 and 100 percent of their 

funding.  There are 212 districts that are receiving more than 100 percent 

of their funding; they’re getting A++++++ funding; 138 of them, more 

than 130 percent.  And of course, on the other side, unfortunately, the 

district’s going to get an F, because below 70 percent -- we actually have 

239 of our 591 districts receiving less than 70 percent of our aid. 

 The problem there is that whether you’re looking at 100 

percent of aid, or what the State is actually contributing now -- about 85 

percent -- there is no tight clustering around that.  You know, we wouldn’t 
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have much of an argument if somebody was getting 81 percent, and 

someone was getting 88 percent, and somebody’s getting 83 percent.  But 

we have districts getting as low as 10 percent, 11 percent; and districts 

getting hundreds of percent higher.  It’s incredibly inequitable.  So State 

aid, clearly, is an issue that’s in your bailiwick.  

  I know my time is at an end here; my presentation ends with 

some myths and truths about State aid to schools in New Jersey.  I would 

just emphasize the last of those myths that Senator Sweeney did point out  

-- and that we keep hearing about winners and losers.  No district that gets 

100 percent of their funding can be considered a loser.  I don’t care if they’re 

getting 120 percent now, 140 percent, 340 percent.  If they get 100 

percent, they’re not a loser, all right?  But there are plenty of other losers 

right now: 239 other districts, as I said, are in severe dysfunction because of 

receiving less than 70 percent of their formula aid. 

 I would leave you with, I think, four solutions, and there’s no 

secret here.  I think number one is the Legislature has to agree on a 

timeline.  We all know this isn’t going to happen overnight; the problem 

didn’t come about overnight, it’s not going to get solved overnight.  But the 

Legislature has to agree on a timeline.  What’s a reasonable timeline to get 

this done?   

 Obviously, through that timeline, full funding has to 

happen.  The State needs to provide its share, which it isn’t doing currently. 

 Thirdly, redistribute the aid that is there into the formula; 

make that fair. 

 And fourth, some of the things we are concerned about -- well, 

what about districts that are below that tax effort?  And, you know, we can 
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never catch up because we have a 2 percent tax cap.  But the fact of the 

matter is that the State provides waivers for districts beyond that 2 percent 

cap.  The State provides waivers for things like excessive special education 

cost, excessive health care costs, excessive enrollment.  Why not a waiver for 

those districts that exhibit two things:  One would be that their budget is 

inadequate -- it’s under adequacy; and secondly, that they are not making a 

sufficient local tax effort.  A district could get a waiver for that. 

 So I will leave that with you, because we’d like to have 

solutions, rather than just problems. 

 And I’ll accept any questions that you have. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Any questions from the panel? 

 Senator Oroho. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  I just--  Well, no question; I just want to 

comment. 

 Dr. Greene and I have had many meetings.  And you can tell he 

did his doctoral thesis on, I think, education funding out of Columbia. 

 DR. GREENE:  School finance. (laughter) 

 SENATOR OROHO:  And the education that he has been able 

to give me through the -- I thought I had read the whole formula and 

dissected it completely.  He showed me completely -- a lot of other ways 

how to dissect it as well. 

 So I just wanted to thank Dr. Greene for all the research he’s 

done and continues to do.  We’ll all continue to have some minor tweaks -- 

or not tweaks -- to how we think it should happen. 
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 But Doctor, thank you very much for the effort you’ve put in 

for years on this. 

 DR. GREENE:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Anyone else? 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Yes. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Senator Doherty. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Yes, thanks, Senate President. 

 I just wanted to comment.  I think it was the Monroe 

Township Mayor; I don’t know if he’s still here, or he left. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  He had to leave. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Okay.  Well, he said he receives $3.3 

million in their school aid, and they’ve had a 20 percent increase in 

population under the current system.  And they don’t get any additional 

money with a 20 percent growth. 

 I just think it’s important to note that Monroe Township, 

according to the State, sends in $39.5 million in income tax.  So they’re 

sending in almost $40 million; they’re receiving $3.3 million back.  And 

these are crazy ratios, you know?  It’s less than one-tenth you’re getting 

back.  And then we have other towns that are getting, you know, five times 

as much back as they send in; a total reversal. 

 So it’s really inequitable, from my view.  So there has to be a 

change.  You can’t stick your head in the sand and not realize where all this 

money is coming from.  And like I said, you actually get punished.  Towns 

like Monroe Township--  Because they send in so much money in income 

tax, they actually get punished under the school funding formula we 
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have.  There’s actually a category, “How much money did you send in?  Oh, 

we’re going to punish you and actually give you less aid.”  So that’s a 

problem -- that you don’t recognize how much these towns are sending in to 

Trenton. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Mr. President. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Yes, Senator Thompson. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  I would add to Senator Doherty’s 

comments here something I often tell taxpayers when they speak of their 

property taxes, and so on; and when they’re looking for the State to resolve 

their problems with property taxes. 

 I point out to them that the best tax dollar they pay is their 

local tax dollar.  Because for every dollar they pay to their local town for the 

school district, etc., they get a dollar’s worth of services.  But if you’re living 

in many of these towns that we’re speaking of, you send a dollar to Trenton 

and try to get some money back -- you’re going to send a dollar in, you’re 

going to get 60 cents or 50 cents, etc. 

 So if you’re looking for the State to resolve your property tax 

problems, first thing you have to do is consider how much money is needed 

to run the system.  You have two things you have to consider:  What is 

necessary to provide the appropriate education, and so on?  And second, it 

is -- whether you get the money from the State or whether it’s collected in 

your property taxes -- it is your same tax dollar.  Now, it’s the case of which 

dollar do you want to send to the State and try to get it back, or do you 

want to pay it directly where it’s going to be spent?   
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 The more that goes directly where it’s going to be spent, the 

better off you are, in most towns.  There are others, as was said, that are 

real winners; they send in 50 cents and get a dollar back.  But for many of 

our towns, if you’re looking for the State to solve your property tax 

problem, you’re going to pay more in taxes -- whether it’s to the State or 

locally -- than you were paying before. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Senator. 

 DR. GREENE:  To that point, if I could just respond. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Please. 

 DR. GREENE:  I think the point that you’re making also gets 

to what the State can do with its State aid policy.  Because when the State 

is overfunding some districts, what they’re creating is a disincentive for that 

district to address its local tax issue.  Because many of the districts that are 

being overfunded have a less-than-sufficient local tax contribution-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  Certainly there’s a more equitable 

distribution -- it’s the number one concern we’re trying to address right 

here. 

 DR. GREENE:  Right.  But I think it’s a disincentive for local 

districts to address a tax issue.  I think that there’s a piece of that-- 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Tough decisions 

 DR. GREENE:  --which I think is important. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Doctor Greene, if it’s okay, I’d like to 

post your presentation on our website; if it’s okay. 

 DR. GREENE:  Sure; absolutely.  It’s been out for a couple 

weeks.  It’s a similar one that’s been out; so absolutely.  Please do. 
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 SENATOR SWEENEY:  And I also want to point out to 

people, too -- you know, some districts don’t have the tax base.  As we 

know, some districts cannot afford to provide the education that’s 

needed.  We’re not talking about that; we recognize that.  Trenton needs 

additional help -- it needs additional help.  They can’t support -- they can’t 

raise enough taxes to support their districts.  That’s why we came up with 

this formula.   

 The formula is weighted fairly, I think.  People will say that -- 

and we can argue a lot of this -- it’s us-against-them.  It’s really not us-

against-them.  We have created -- we, the Legislature, have created an 

unfair situation by creating these categories.  But districts like Trenton need 

the assistance to provide fair education.  It seems like years ago, but we 

actually started this conversation in the Senate in Paterson, New 

Jersey.  And when we started it, I learned that they teach in 58 different 

languages.  It’s remarkable to try to think about that.  I mean, I live in West 

Deptford; it’s a suburb.  We teach in one language, you now?  And to be 

perfectly honest with you--  And you have to recognize the challenges. 

  You know, I mean--  And this is something we don’t want to 

pit -- this is not about pitting communities against each other.  This is 

about ensuring that all children get a fair education; and where the 

communities can’t support the schools, we have an obligation to help. 

 But we screwed up.  The Legislature changes made this so 

difficult.  And that’s why I appreciate what you said: 100 percent’s a win for 

everyone.  But we shouldn’t be picking on districts that need our assistance 

either.  Paterson was heartbreaking for me, personally, to witness.  The kids 

don’t have math books; they don’t have books.  They work off of a pad and 
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a piece of paper, and they go home.  How do they do homework; how do 

they do homework?   How many--  Someone -- I don’t know who; I’m 

plagiarizing someone -- said, how many Einsteins are we losing because  

we’re not providing the proper funding?  If it was impossible to fully fund 

this, it would be one thing.  It’s not; $1.4 billion was impossible. 

Recognizing you had $600 million sitting someplace that could be 

redistributed fairly without punishing is another area. 

 So I really do appreciate the graph, and I’ve heard your 

testimony in other places.  We shouldn’t be having three and four 

committees doing this; the solutions are pretty simple.  But the purpose of 

the Senate doing this, in a bipartisan fashion, is we’re not letting this issue 

go.  We’re just not letting the issue go at this point.  We’ve had enough, 

and we’re going to keep this alive.   

 But we’re depending on groups like yours to keep it alive with 

the voters, too.  Because it will get done if enough people get angry; you 

know that.   

 DR. GREENE:  Right. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  I’m going to ask Senator Smith to 

come up and join us. 

 DR. GREENE:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Senator Sweeney, can I just 

make  one-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Yes, Senator Doherty; yes. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Thanks, Senator Sweeney. 

 I just want to make comment to Dr. Greene. 

 You know, you’re from Newton, right? 
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 DR. GREENE:  Yes. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  So regarding local governmental 

entities doing their fair share to contribute, as well, to property taxes.  I 

think an issue that this Committee should address is the abatement issue. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Yes. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Because in Newton, before an 

abatement is given, you have to be really careful because it’s going to affect 

how much you can collect locally in property taxes.  Well, amazingly -- and 

the audience should know, and the Committee members -- that when 

certain towns give away tax abatements, there’s really no downside because 

the State, sort of, puts the blinders on.  So you can give away abatements, 

for, like, every building that’s going up in the town -- these high-rise 

condos.  And they abate the properties, and there’s really no downside 

because the town is getting most of its budget for the schools from the State 

of New Jersey.  

  I think there has to be some consequences of abating every 

property that goes up.  Now, some properties should be abated, if they’re 

going to bring economic consequences.  But if you’re giving tax abatements 

on high-rise, multi-million dollar condo units, then you have to say, “Well, 

gee, should we really allow this town to do that, and then come back to 

New Jersey and get most of its school aid from the rest of the state?”  I 

think that’s a real problem that needs to be addressed. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  I can guarantee -- and I agree with 

Senator Doherty with the abatements -- that you see in the long-term 

abatements around the state.   
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 But with Newton, in my District -- I know that’s not the 

abatement problem, but there are many other districts around the state 

where the abatement is a big issue. 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  In fact, I recall several years ago we 

had a situation in Newark -- that there were a number of major downtown 

facilities down there that had had 25- to 30-year tax abatements.  They 

were expiring.  Newark was giving them new tax abatements for another 25 

or 30 years.  Consequently, their tax base is smaller; therefore, they require 

more State aid. 

 DR. GREENE:  Well, I can tell you the abatement issue -- at 

least from a school perspective -- the impact isn’t, perhaps, what you’d 

think.  Because from a school aid perspective, from a town--  I’m going to 

get the same local tax effort whether there are abatements or whether there  

aren’t abatements.  And the fact is that the State still has a $1.4 billion 

issue, regardless of the abatements.  Where it impacts is that it’s a decision 

being made by the municipality, which affects its residents -- and its 

residents are having to pay more because of those abated properties. 

 So that’s really--  To me, that’s a municipal issue.  It doesn’t get 

away from, that the State has a $1.4 billion commitment to fully fund the 

formula.  And again, as we’ve had an abatement in Newton, and the town 

manager came to me and said, “Look, I’m really sorry.  You know, I know it 

really impacts you.”  And I said, “Look, it doesn’t really impact me.  We’re 

getting the same tax dollars from the town whether you abate that property 

or you don’t.  You’ve just put that impact more on the residents, and you’ll 

probably have to explain that to them.” 
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   But we’re still getting the same dollar amount; and in fact, in 

our case, it certainly does affect our residents, because our residents are 

paying 144 percent of their local fair share; 44 percent above the local fair 

share -- of course, being because the State aid that we’re receiving is only 56 

percent of what we should.  So it’s a problem. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Well-- 

 SENATOR THOMPSON:  It would affect the State aid in that 

when you consider the adequacy budget -- money that should be supplied 

locally, versus the State, is based upon what is the tax base in that 

town.  And if it reduces the tax base, then it says there’s less tax base to 

support it locally; therefore, it requires more State aid. 

 DR. GREENE:  That could be something tweaked in the local 

fair share calculation. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Well, just so you know, the legislation 

that we passed; that I spoke about, that we passed in a very bipartisan, 

broad-based position -- that if it was put up for a vote in the Assembly,  

would pass overwhelmingly; that the Speaker, at this time, is choosing not 

to -- addresses abatements.  Because communities that are underfunding 

their district shouldn’t be allowed to take--  You know, there’s nothing 

wrong with PILOTs; there’s nothing wrong with doing them.  But when you 

take all the money and don’t provide any funding for the schools, that’s 

where the problems come in.  And if you’re underfunding a district, you 

shouldn’t be allowed to enter into an abatement unless the district’s going 

to get their fair share in the abatement. 

 And that was actually part of our conversation to look at -- the 

legislation we passed was to look at that.  So we said, “Okay, you can do 
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your abatements to help--”  Because Newark needs to do it; Newark needs 

economic development, as other urban centers need to do it.  But it doesn’t 

mean that we have to -- and I say cheat the school districts.  You know, 

because, “I didn’t raise taxes;” you know, it’s the old game. “I didn’t raise 

taxes; they did.”  Well, we -- all my money comes out of the same pocket. 

 But anyone else? (no response) 

 And if not -- okay, thank you, Doctor. 

 DR. GREENE:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  I’m going to ask Senator Smith to say 

a few words. 

 Senator, thank you for being here. 

S E N A T O R   B O B   S M I T H:  Welcome to Middlesex County. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  In a beautiful facility; brand new 

facility. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  The County College is just fabulous.  It’s 

one of our economic engines, as well as educational engines in our County. 

 So what we can all agree on is -- we wish we had more money to 

support education, and even higher education; which in my view, we don’t 

provide enough support. 

 But that being said, over the course of the years that I’ve been 

in the Legislature, school aid has always been a third rail.  No matter what 

you do, you’re wrong; and you’re wrong because at the end of the day, if 

you divide up a pot of money, there are going to be winners and there are 

going to be losers.  And that’s in terms of the dollars the districts would like 

to see to assist them in their programs. 
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 So we have in front of us now -- at least, as announced in the 

newspaper -- a proposal by our Governor that we should have one-size-fits-

all; that every student should get X dollars for every district.  And the 

problem with one-size-fits-all is that it doesn’t fit, all right?  Our districts 

are different, in that our districts -- we have some districts where there are 

many students with learning disabilities; we have districts where there are 

many students who have language issues, where they’re trying to 

acclimatize into American society; we have many districts where students 

are part of a lunch program, because they come from families with very 

modest means. 

 And we attempted, in the Corzine Administration, to come up 

with a solution to that, all right?  And by the way, nothing’s changed on the 

big picture.  We still have, in our Constitution, a clause that says that we 

are required to provide a thorough and efficient education.  And every court 

-- including the current court, which had a number of picks from our 

current Governor -- continues to reaffirm that we, the State of New Jersey, 

have an obligation to provide a thorough and efficient education. 

 Back in the Corzine Administration, if you remember, we came 

up with a funding formula that was based on children’s needs.  How many 

children do we have in the poverty program, lunch program, English as a 

second language, etc.?  And the aid to the district wasn’t based on the zip 

code; it was based on the needs of the children.  And I would continue to 

suggest that, at the end of the day, whatever formula we look to revise or 

adopt, I don’t think there’s a fairer formula.  You have to look at the district 

and the kids who the district is trying to serve. 
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 So with that in mind, we still have a problem; and the problem 

is us.  You know, the old cartoon Pogo, “We met the enemy, and he is are 

us.”  I’m not talking about us as Legislators; we, in our minds, and in the 

minds of our constituents, would be doing a disservice to the people we 

represent if we don’t fight for every dollar we can for our school districts.  

You don’t do that, you’re a terrible legislator.  But that doesn’t necessarily 

comport with what our Supreme Court repeatedly, over the last 35 years, 

has said.   

 And by the way, the Corzine formula, if you remember, got a 

judicial blessing from the New Jersey State Supreme Court that using that 

as the basis for funding was legitimate; that it met constitutional muster.  

So the plan to give an equal dollar for every student because they’re alive -- 

not because they have special needs or they have characteristics that should 

be addressed -- is one that, from the start, is absolutely unconstitutional. 

 So why do we want to go through a drama, a game where, if 

that ever did get into the State budget, we know, right off the top, it’s 

unconstitutional?  We just put our State into chaos; we put our school 

districts into chaos.  So that’s not the right path.   

 And I have concerns, Senate President, that we get to June, 

we’re going to have a very unpleasant June.  I mean, if you want -- if the 

Governor wants to have a constitutional crisis, he will put forward a budget 

that says X dollars for every student in the state.  We can’t--  If we’re 

responsible, we know that that doesn’t fly constitutionally with our State 

Supreme Court.  If we then try to modify it -- as you know the budgetary 

process in New Jersey -- the Governor proposes, and then we can cut, all 

right?  But only he can, basically, add in after that process is going on. 
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 So we, theoretically, could have total chaos by June 30; maybe 

even a governmental shutdown.  And I’m not for that; I don’t think 

anybody on your panel is for that.  But we need cool heads to talk about 

this so that we’re not violating the Constitution, so that we’re properly 

providing funding to our school districts. 

 And then lastly, whatever mechanism we come up with at the 

end, we have to get us out of it.  Legislators -- because we all have a 

responsibility to our constituents -- have to fight for every dollar for the 

district, whether the district has special needs or not; and if you don’t do 

that, you’re a bad legislator.  So we need to find a process where we can get 

a final recommendation that is constitutionally valid, and then we get a 

chance to vote on that.  As opposed to saying, “I need more for the 17th,” 

or “You need more for the 15th.”  It has to be one where we do what the 

law of the State of New Jersey requires us to do. 

 So that’s my 2 cents, for what it’s worth. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you.  

 And Senator, I can’t agree any more.  If I close my eyes, I could 

hear myself talking. (laughter) No, because we agree.  We have an 

obligation.  There’s nothing wrong with the formula that was put forward. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  You know, we should always 

constantly look at it to make sure that, as things change, you address them; 

but the formula works.  We need to fund it; you know, I keep going back:  

Run and fund it.  Well, we think we’re on a course that we can do that. 

 And I want to thank my colleagues -- most of them up here -- 

who actually voted to do exactly what you said-- 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  Right. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  --which was to take us out, and put 

the numbers in front of us, and do an up or down vote. 

 So again, thank you for your leadership there, too. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Senator. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Senator Thompson (sic). 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Yes, Senator Sweeney-- 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Oh, Senator Doherty; I’m sorry. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  --I just want one point of clarification, 

Senator Smith. 

 I appreciate you coming to testify. 

 I think part of Governor Christie’s plan on the Fair School 

Funding -- which I support -- my understanding is that a key component of 

that is actually amending the State Constitution.  I don’t know that 

Governor Christie, or any of us, would want to move forward and provide 

that equal funding for every student that he is advocating, and a lot of us 

have supported.  It would be only after the Constitution was amended;  and 

at the end of the day, the people of New Jersey -- it’s their Constitution, it’s 

their government.  So a key component would be going to the voters of 

New Jersey and asking them, “Do you think that the money should be 

divided equally for every student?”  And if that didn’t happen, I don’t think 

Governor Christie, or any of us, would support creating chaos and moving 

forward.  So the Constitution would have to be amended; if that didn’t 

happen, then the plan doesn’t get off first base. 
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 SENATOR SMITH:  But in terms of the timing, if the 

Governor is going to propose it in this budget, the Constitution hasn’t been 

amended. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Yes, I don’t think he’s -- I don’t 

predict he’s going to. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  I’m waiting for the March budget speech 

before I take a position on that. (laughter) 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  And you know, Senator Doherty, I 

want to thank you for voting for the Bill that we passed, too -- in 

recognizing that we’re just trying to--  You know, I know you were 

sponsoring the Governor’s bill, but you recognize we need to get going, and 

I really do appreciate that vote. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SMITH:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Next, I’m going to call Dr. Brian -- I 

hope I don’t kill you -- Zychowski (indicating pronunciation); Dr. Robert 

Zega -- I get that one right; Dr. Aubrey Johnson; and Mr. Richard 

Jannarone, School Business Administrator, New Brunswick Public Schools. 

 Whoever wants to start. 

B R I A N   Z Y C H O W S K I,   Ed.D.:  Good afternoon, Senator 

Sweeney, members of the Committee on School Funding Fairness. 

 Thank you for this opportunity to share my comments on 

public school funding. 

 My name is Brian Zychowski; and I am the Superintendent of 

Schools for North Brunswick Township School District, right here in the 

heart of Middlesex County. 
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 I’ve been a Superintendent for 18 years; the past 10 in North 

Brunswick.  Throughout my tenure, I lived through the failed attempts of 

past funding formulas -- QEA1; 2; CEIFA; and now the School Funding 

Reform Act, SFRA.   

 The School Funding Reform Act was enacted for a laudable and 

common sense purpose: to allocate State funds for education of all students, 

with a particular focus on the neediest students, regardless of where they 

may live.  After decades of litigation regarding school funding in New 

Jersey, the SFRA was created and blessed by the State Supreme Court -- as 

we discussed already -- with one important condition: that it actually be 

funded.  Unfortunately, the State has failed to live up to its obligations. 

 So I am here today to ask you to temper your search for the 

perfect formula, and expedite the timelines that will be needed to fund the 

current good formula, SFRA. 

 The formula established under the Act was a product of a 

careful and deliberative process.  It provided adequate funding as 

realistically geared to the Core Curriculum Content Standards, thus linking 

those standards to the actual funding needed to deliver that content.  By 

failing to fund the SFRA, the Legislature has failed to provide the 

schoolchildren of this state enough funds to actually meet the education 

standards that they are being held to. 

 North Brunswick received only 26 percent of the funding they 

are supposed to receive under full implementation of the SFRA.  No district 

in Middlesex County receives a smaller percentage of SFRA funding.  

Translated to real dollars, North Brunswick receives $11.8 million and, 

according to their recent released school funding figures, North Brunswick 
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should receive an additional $33.3 million.  I have enclosed a chart that is 

used throughout Middlesex County to show the funding formula at its cap 

level and without cap. 

 Currently, the growth cap restricts the ability of underfunded 

school districts, like North Brunswick, from reaching the level of funding --

appropriate SFRA allocations -- because of arbitrarily restricting how much 

additional State funding a district can receive from one year to the next.  So 

important to the North Brunswick story is that the North Brunswick 

District is under adequacy spending, and their residents continue to pay 

more than a local fair share within a community that continues to grow. 

 For years, the districts throughout the state has been allocating 

adjustment aid that was meant to serve as a temporary reprieve from the 

cuts those districts would have faced under a fully phased-in SFRA.  While 

North Brunswick has been denied funding that even reasonably approaches 

the level required through this funding formula, districts that were supposed 

to lose funding have continued to receive more than they require under the 

legislature’s continuing payments of this adjustment aid. 

 By failing to provide increased funds under the proper 

implementation of SFRA, North Brunswick budgets have been unfairly 

constrained and restricted, year after year.  Class sizes are beyond maximum 

levels; critical programs have been cut or reduced, which comprises the 

District’s ability to serve its growing, diverse, and most needy populations.  

The students, staff, and taxpayers of North Brunswick -- and every other 

public school district in Middlesex County, and many districts throughout 

New Jersey -- need the Legislature to ensure that SFRA is fully funded.   
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 And a very expedited timeline, as we know it, won’t be one 

year; it will be a few years to get this right, so that our children receive not 

just the education they need, but the education they deserve. 

 And thank you today for taking on this monumental task. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Who’s next? 

R O B E R T   Z E G A,   Ed. D.:  Hello.  Thank you for hearing us out 

today. 

 My name is Robert Zega; I am the Superintendent of 

Woodbridge Township School District.  We are the 8th largest school 

district in New Jersey.  We have 13,600-plus students, and rising. 

 Last year, we received $24 million in State aid; that was 

approximately one-third of what we were entitled to, and it comprises about 

11 percent of our budget. 

 Believe me, we’re grateful for that $24 million.  And the 

students in our District receive a great education because of our taxpayers 

and because of our residents.  And they’re committed to making the 

sacrifice that it takes to educate our students. 

 Every year, we come to these residents and we present the 

budget to them.  And every year, we get the same question. “Why do the 

residents of Woodbridge Township have to make greater sacrifices than the 

residents of similar towns, with similar budgets, and similar populations?” 

 And we’re not talking about Trenton or Camden; we’re talking 

about similar towns, and you know who they are.  Why do the residents of 

Woodbridge Township have to make greater sacrifices to provide an 

education for their children? 
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 We’ll wait until someone provides an answer; but I can tell you 

that the residents of Woodbridge Township will continue to provide a great 

education for their children.  And we will wait, but we will not wait 

patiently.   

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

A U B R E Y   A.   J O H N S O N,   Ed. D.:  Good afternoon, Senator 

Sweeney and our panel members. 

 My name is Aubrey Johnson; I’m the Superintendent of New 

Brunswick Public Schools.  And to my right, I have my Business 

Administrator, Mr. Rich Jannarone. 

 Just to be really brief -- I’m just going to talk about our District 

on our macro level; and I’m going to have Mr. Jannarone give a little bit of 

information on our micro level. 

 New Brunswick Public Schools has been designated as a former 

Abbott school district; we serve over 10,200 students.  And just for the past 15 

years, our enrollment was below 6,000 students.  And we have had an 

explosive growth since then. 

 During the past three years alone, our student population has 

grown by 1,000 students.  We are currently averaging about 300 to 400 

students per year. 

 Due to this enrollment growth and lack of increased State aid, 

the financial situation in New Brunswick requires immediate attention and 

action in order to preserve an educational program that requires students to 

be fully, thoroughly, and efficiently educated. 
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 The lack of funds will impact class size, limited English 

proficient learning programs, basic skills programs, and many other 

academic and support service programs that will all feel the brunt with a 

reduction in funding. 

 Yes, a lot of districts will look at New Brunswick and feel that, 

you know, we receive a lot of money.  But I must stress to you our student 

population, in which 90 percent are economically disadvantaged; we have 

about 88 percent Hispanic population; about 10 percent African American 

population; 15 percent special ed population; and about 20 percent limited 

English proficient population.  Our population deserves a purposeful and 

targeted program to meet its needs.  The population requires additional 

support. 

 A cut in funding will cause us to reduce or possibly close 

schools in terms of personnel, in terms of specialists, in terms of security.  It 

also will cause us to cut programs, such as extended-day programs, before-

care programs, summer programs, art programs, robotic clubs, and other 

extracurricular programs. 

 I must point out that, because our families in those 

communities do not have the resources to provide those means which would 

allow our kids to be competitive with somebody else, it is really important 

that our funding increase -- and Mr. Jannarone will speak to us shortly in 

regards to that -- in order for us to be able to prepare, empower, and inspire 

our students to be lifelong learners and leaders. 

 Although this is not the medium to speak of this, I must say 

that we also should be mindful of the impact that the charter schools in 

Middlesex and Somerset counties, at the same time -- where we believe that 
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there is going to be an expansion of about 128 percent of seats in those 

areas alone -- that we must take a look at; because it will impact our budget. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

R I C H A R D   D.   J A N N A R O N E:  Thank you, Senate President 

and the Committee, for allowing us to speak to you today. 

 My name is Richard Jannarone, and I’ve been the School 

Business Administrator in New Brunswick for approximately 18 years.  And 

when we started -- when I started, we had 5,400 kids; and now we have 

over 10,200 students. 

 Even though New Brunswick is a former Abbott district, and 

many believe that we get all the money, we are also on the list of the 50 

most underfunded districts in the State of New Jersey.  Currently, we’re 

receiving $29 million less in State aid than we’re due, and entitled to, 

through the current funding formula. 

 Since the 2011-2012 school year, we’ve only received a 3.5 

percent increase in State aid; only 0.7 percent a year.  Over that same 

period, we’ve raised the taxes 5.76 percent, and we are over our fair share 

for local taxes. 

 So our budget has only grown 1.25 percent a year over the last 

five years.  So even in a community where our free and reduced lunch 

students are over 90 percent, our taxpayers have paid more than the State, 

on a percentage basis, over the last five years. 

 This lack of State aid cannot be sustained.  And we request that 

you fund the current funding formula, even if it’s in a three-to-five year 

phase-in period, where our locals can continue to support our budget; and 
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with that State aid that we know we can receive, phased-in over a three-to-

five year period, we can try to sustain our current programs. 

 One other point I’d like to make, is that New Brunswick is a 

very efficient school district and we use our financial resources to the fullest.  

We’re almost $32 million below adequacy, but we are above our local fair 

share in taxes.  We are below the State averages in administrative costs, 

legal costs, administrative ratios to students -- just to name a few.  Our 

fiscal responsibility has enabled us to maintain programs over the last 

several years, but we have reached the breaking point where the -- without 

an infusion of State aid it’s going to wipe out any gains in programs and 

make us have to make severe cuts.  

 So to just sum it up for you:  I thought I heard someone before 

say that Middlesex County is $280 million short in State aid.  Well, $29 

million of that is for New Brunswick, an Abbott district.  So I know not all 

Abbott districts are getting all the money, and we are a prime example of 

that.  I’ll remind you:  We’re $32 million under adequacy, $29 million short 

in State aid, and we are above our local fair share in taxes, and one of the 

50 most underfunded districts in the state. 

 So it is not just about -- as Senator Sweeney said before -- the 

Abbott districts versus the non-Abbott districts.   

 And we thank you very much.  And again, I hope you would 

fund that current formula; it is fair for all students, even if you can provide 

that in a three-to-five year period. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you very much. 

 I wanted to ask one question. 



 

 

 54 

 You mentioned -- the Superintendent -- that you had to cut 

certain programs.  Do you have an ESL program; and is that still being 

funded? 

 DR. JOHNSON:  Yes, we do have an ESL program.  I’m 

speaking in terms of -- if we do not receive, we will have to cut. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Oh, you will have to cut. 

 DR. JOHNSON:  Yes. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Okay.  What is your per-pupil 

cost now? 

 DR. JOHNSON:  About 14,000, correct? 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  About $14,000. 

 DR. JOHNSON:  About $14,000. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  You mentioned charter schools, 

so I just have to ask you.  Do you -- how many charter schools are there 

now in your District? 

 DR. JOHNSON.  One. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Just one?  Okay. 

 Thank you. 

 Are there any questions? (no response) 

 Thank you very much for your presentation today. 

 MR. JANNARONE:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  We’re now going to call Mr. 

Scott Taylor, Superintendent, Highland Park School District; Ms. Darcie 

Cimarusti (indicating pronunciation), Highland Park Board of Education; 

and Mr. Mark Krieger, Highland Park Board of Education. 
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M A R K   K R I  E G E R:  Hello; and thank you, Senators, for the 

opportunity to testify today. 

 My name is Mark Krieger; I’m a member of the Highland Park 

Board of Education, where I serve as the Chair of the Finance Committee.  

I’m in my fifth term on the Board of Education, spanning more than 25 

years.  

 I’m here with Darcie Cimarusti, our Board President; and Dr. 

Scott Taylor, who is the Superintendent of Schools.  And I’ll be doing all of 

the presentation today. 

 Highland Park is a diverse suburban community with 40 

percent of our 1,650 students eligible for free or reduced school lunch; and 

more than 40 languages spoken at home.  Based on the New Jersey 

Department of Education formula, Highland Park was scheduled to receive 

$7.9 million of State aid this school year, if fully funded.  And in fact, our 

District received $3.6 million in State aid, for a shortfall of $4.3 million in a 

very small district -- relatively small district. 

 This shortfall is more than 12 percent of our $33 million 

budget, and it has two negative effects:  First, programs for our children 

have suffered.  For example, textbooks and classroom equipment could not 

be replaced and, in some cases, not even provided.  State-of-the-art 

programs that we’ve planned could not be started.  ESL and special 

education services became very tightly stretched.  So these cuts directly 

affect our children. 

 Second, taxes have gone up significantly.  In the 2016-2017 

school year, the tax levy paid by our residents, for schools only, went up by 

3.9 percent; and in the previous year, 2015-2016, the tax levy went up 4.3 
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percent.  We’re only able to increase the tax levy above the 2 percent level 

because we, as well as other districts, are given waivers for unusual expenses.  

These unusual expenses include extremely expensive out-of-district 

placements for special education students; 10 percent increases in 

healthcare costs; and for transportation.  

 We are also faced with tuition and transportation charges from 

charter schools that some of our district’s students are attending, even 

though those charter schools are not in our town. 

 What’s our position?  We support full funding for New Jersey 

school districts, according to our Department of Education’s own formula.  

Programs could be maintained and enhanced, equipment could be kept 

current, teachers could get appropriate professional development, and our 

residents would pay fair tax increases.  An example of a program like that 

would be a change from half-day to full-day pre-K.   

 We do not support the Governor’s proposal, which increases 

funding for some districts, but significantly lowers the funding of urban 

districts serving communities most in need.  Suburban districts, like my 

own, should be more fully funded without harming those districts. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you. 

 Yes. 

D A R C I E   C I M A R U S T I:  He was providing all of our testimony; 

although I could give you a little bit more information about how charter 

schools are impacting communities, specifically in Middlesex County, as Dr. 

Johnson mentioned. 
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 They do have one charter school in New Brunswick, but a 

second has been approved to open in September 2018; and a third is being 

proposed, currently.  So New Brunswick could very quickly go from a 

community with one charter school -- which they have kind of reached a 

balance with, and they are able to fund --  

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Right. 

 MS. CIMARUSTI:  --to having triple the number of charter 

schools within two or three years.  So we’re looking at significant charter 

school expansion throughout Middlesex County that is impacting all of the 

districts, including North Brunswick, Highland Park, New Brunswick.  And 

so we could really use some help in that regard, because when these districts 

are so underfunded -- as you’ve heard from everyone who has provided 

testimony -- to then provide hundreds of thousands, if not millions of 

dollars in charter school tuitions on top of that, it just becomes 

unsustainable. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you; thank you very 

much. 

 Are there any questions or comments? (no response) 

 Thank you very much for your testimony. 

 MR. KRIEGER:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  We’re now going to call Mr. 

Michael Gorski, School Business Administrator, Monroe Township; Mr. 

Michael Kozak, Superintendent, Monroe Township; Ken Chiarella, Board 

of Education member, Monroe Township; and Kathy Kolupanowich 

(indicating pronunciation) -- let’s hope that’s it -- Monroe Township. 
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M I C H A E L   G.   K O Z A K,   Ed. D.:  Well, I had my good morning, 

but I think I’ll change it to good afternoon. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  That’s fine with us. 

 DR. KOZAK:  It has gone past 12 o’clock. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Good afternoon. 

 DR. KOZAK:  Good afternoon. 

 I’d like to thank the members of the Senate Select Committee 

on School Funding Fairness. 

 My name is Dr. Michael Kozak, and I am the Superintendent 

of the Monroe Township School District in Middlesex County. 

 I would like to present how the hold-harmless provision is 

actually harming Monroe Township. 

 So you’re getting the presentation now; and on the first page -- 

or the second page, if you will, is a picture of students in our middle school.  

And I wanted to bring that to your attention, because you see the students 

walking around the hallways with their book bags on their backs.  And that 

is because we don’t have lockers for the number of students in our already 

overcapacity middle school, because of the overcrowded conditions due to 

our continued student growth. 

 We had to cut the library in half just so that we could add 

additional classrooms to house our students. 

 The next picture is a picture of our high school.  Our six-year-

old high school is already over capacity due to our continued student 

enrollment.  Yet even though our enrollment is rapidly growing, our State 

aid remains flat. 
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 The next page is informational; it’s our Board of Education, our 

Board President, who is sitting to my right; Mr. Chiarella is one of our 

Board members as well; Mr. Mike Gorski, who is sitting next to me. 

 The next page is entitled Student Enrollment.  The Monroe 

Township School District is experiencing unprecedented student growth.  

We have added 1,330 students since 2008; and in the next five years, our 

demographic report predicts 1,535 students entering our schools.   

 This increased student enrollment is forcing us to go back to 

the taxpayers in Monroe Township to ask them to fund the building of a 

new elementary school, a new middle school, and an addition to our high 

school, which is only six years old.  The Township has had a number of 

referendums in the past 15 or 20 years, and we are once again asking them 

to shoulder the debt and the cost of building these schools. 

 Because of the hold-harmless provision, the Monroe Township 

School District is cutting quality educational programs and services to 

accommodate its new student enrollment.  In addition, we have been 

cannibalizing our schools by converting libraries and other areas into 

classrooms.  Our enrollment projection of 476 students (sic) for the 2017-

2018 school year will cost an additional $7.1 million, which is 476 students 

times our approximate cost of $15,000 per student. 

 The following graph shows you how our enrollment has grown 

since 2008-2009 until 2016-2017; an enrollment growth of 6,728 students. 

 In 2008, the Monroe Township School District received 

$5,467,365 in State aid.  Eight years later, in 2016, we received $3,344,439 

in State aid.  That equals an eight-year cumulative decrease in State aid of a 

negative $2,122,926, or a 39 percent decrease in State aid.  But our eight-
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year cumulative student enrollment increased by 1,330, which is a 25 

percent increase. 

 So while some districts receive $30 million in State aid, 

Monroe receives a little over $3 million.  Perhaps requiring housing 

developers to contribute to the building of new schools, to equate with the 

number of houses built in a township, could help the local school district to 

avoid placing that burden on the taxpayers in the district. 

 The next page is merely a graph showing the increase in student 

population, along with the decrease in State aid. 

 And finally, in conclusion, I would like to thank you for 

providing this opportunity to present our funding concerns to you.  On 

behalf of the Monroe Township Board of Education, the students, staff, and 

the entire community of Monroe Township, we respectfully ask that you 

begin to fund the Monroe Township School District and all other unfunded 

school districts, beginning with the 2017-2018 school year. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Yes. 

M I C H A E L   C.   G O R S K I:  Good afternoon. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Good afternoon. 

 MR. GORSKI:  My name is Michael Gorski; I’m a Certified 

Public Accountant/Public School Auditor.  I have a master’s degree in 

Educational Administration; I’m an Adjunct Professor at Rider School of 

Education in school financial classes.  And I’ve been in Monroe Township 

for 18 years. 

 I appreciate the opportunity to speak before you, as we have 

many times before. 
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 Monroe Township is the poster child district for underfunded 

school districts.  You’re not going to have another school district speak 

before you today that receives less than $438 per pupil in terms of State aid 

from the State.  That’s essentially two or three large textbooks per pupil -- 

that’s the State’s contribution to education in Monroe.  The rest falls on 

the backs of the residents of Monroe, who bear 88 percent of all revenues 

required to fund public schools in Monroe Township. 

 Monroe has been harmed by the stabilization/hold-harmless 

provision to the tune of $1 million to $2 million a year for the last couple of 

years.  Additionally, the State’s failure to fully fund their own formula, 

subsequent to the 2008-2009 school year, has cost Monroe approximately 

$7 million dollars a year over the last eight years. 

 Monroe’s funding was handicapped with the 2010-2011 school 

budget, when Monroe received a 95 percent reduction in State aid of $4.4 

million, leaving us with only $238,000 of General Fund State aid for that 

year; $4.2 million dollars of tax levy was shifted from what was formerly the 

State’s obligation to fund schools, to what is now the local taxpayers, where 

it has remained ever since.  

 Monroe is one of the only districts in the county that receives 

no equalization aid at all, which is the most substantial type of State aid.  

Monroe is grossly underfunded in terms of State aid obligation to fund 

education.  Monroe taxpayers, again, fund 88 cents of every dollar required 

to fund the schools. 

 Monroe is over 43 square miles, the largest land mass in 

Middlesex County.  Sidewalks are not prevalent in most neighborhoods, 

causing the District to spend millions annually in the transportation budget 
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to safeguard students on hazardous routes.  Special education mandates -- 

plus many more factors beyond our control -- contribute to Monroe’s over 

adequacy status, which causes a direct phase-out of eligible categorical aid. 

Monroe spends 30 percent of the General Fund budget on 18 percent of 

our special ed population. 

 Monroe has not qualified for equalization aid in the last 

decade. A district’s adequacy budget is designed to be funded by 

equalization aid.  Districts’ total adequacy budgets are supported by a 

combination of State and local funding; that was the design.  Under the 

formula, the calculation of each district’s local fair share is based on the 

wealth of each community as measured by aggregate income and property 

value.  As should be expected under an equitable system, wealthy 

municipalities should still be expected to pick up a larger share of the cost 

of public education in their districts than poorer communities.  But every 

district should receive some State aid.   

 A district’s calculation of equalization aid comes from a 

calculation called local fair share.  There is no fairness in local fair share that 

calculates no aid for districts like Monroe. 

 Now, 1 would like you to understand the demographics of our 

town so you can better understand who bears the levy.  Sixty percent of our 

residents in Monroe reside in Monroe’s planned retirement communities.  

According to the decennial census, greater than one-third of Monroe’s 

residents are 65 years or older.   

 So understanding the State’s limitation in resources to provide 

State aid, I would like to provide a very reasonable solution. 
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 I propose that the State develop a more graduated scale, to 

ensure every public school district receives some level of adequacy budget 

funding, by modifying the local fair share calculation to ensure that districts 

receive a minimal amount per pupil required to responsibly operate a school 

district.  This is not the idea that each student receives the same amount of 

State aid -- which we determined was unconstitutional -- but a more 

responsible method of delivering the promise of SFRA 2008 that, under an 

equitable system, wealthy municipalities will still be expected to pick up a 

larger share of the cost of public education, but every district will continue 

to receive some equalization aid. 

 As the Business Administrator of Monroe, I’m responsible for 

transportation; I’m responsible for security, facilities, budget, finance.  I 

never thought I would be responsible for developing and being directed by 

the Superintendent to design legislation on our behalf to get our fair share 

of State aid -- which was a successful endeavor, supported by Senator 

Greenstein and Assemblymen Benson and DeAngelo.   

 Monroe’s 40,000 residents are hurting, are bearing the burden 

of supporting public schools, public school mandates, other statutory 

requirements.  And now our District is being squeezed in between cap and 

an underfunding in State aid.  And we are now eating into the quality 

programs and services, as Dr. Kozak mentioned, that we’ve very proudly 

put forth in our District.  

 The residents of Monroe are being taxed out of their homes.  

The seniors in our senior communities are beginning to eat into their 

corpus, because the savings in income that they receive has been flat -- with 
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quantitative easing and so on -- over the last few years, while taxes and their 

burden to fund public education continues to rise.  This is unfair. 

 And we appreciate your addressing this problem. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Have you had to lay any 

teachers off? 

 MR. GORSKI:  Yes; yes, we have had teacher layoffs.  And as 

Dr. Kozak mentioned, our District has experienced incredible growth-- 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Right. 

 MR. GORSKI:  --to the tune of 1,330 students over the last 

eight years. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Right. 

 MR. GORSKI:  That’s a 25 percent increase; while cumulative 

State aid has decreased $2.1 million, or 39 percent.  What we’re doing is 

squeezing more students in, taking on more responsibility, and that’s eating 

into existing programs and services.  We’re being choked between the cap 

and no State aid funding.  And next year we’re projected to have 476 new 

students.  That’s one year’s worth. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you. 

 MR. GORSKI:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Did you-- 

K E N   C H I A R E L L A:  Yes, thank you. 

 My name is Ken Chiarella.  I’m a Board member on the 

Monroe Township Board of Ed. 

 I want to thank you for having us here today and allowing us to 

speak. 
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 I also want to thank Senator Greenstein and Assemblyman 

Benson for speaking on our behalf; and for own Mayor Tamburro for taking 

the time today to come and speak on our behalf. 

 The people of Monroe Township are in a worsening 

predicament.  We basically self-fund our District, which has a $100 million 

budget this year.  That means that the taxpayers of Monroe Township pay 

for nearly all of the unfunded mandates from New Jersey and from 

Washington D.C. 

 We have a growing student population that’s being caused by 

never-ending development.  We have rules and laws in place that help 

developers and actually harm taxpayers.  For instance, it is illegal for 

municipalities to ask for impact fees from developers. 

 The Super PACs -- which are rife with contributions from 

developers, attorneys and special services -- have made it easy to circumvent 

pay-to-play laws.  Violating the spirit of those laws should also be a crime. 

 The affordable housing commitments are a burden that will 

further destroy our residents’ ability to pay for their slice of the American 

dream.  In fact, the continuous increase in property taxes in Monroe 

Township have forced many of our long-time residents -- the ones born and 

raised in Monroe -- to flee to other towns, and many are leaving the state.  

Furthermore, we would have affordable housing in Monroe Township if our 

property taxes weren’t so high. 

 The mood of our residents is shifting, and they are angry.  We 

may be one tax increase, or one economic downturn -- like we had in 20008 

-- from something very ugly.  When people can’t afford to live, when they 
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start to lose their sense of security, they act in ways that will be very 

difficult to deal with. 

 I received 8,083 votes for the School Board election in 

November.  I received 2,000 more than the next-closest person running.  

The reason wasn’t because I’m wonderful -- you can ask them; I’m not 

wonderful at all (laughter) -- I received those votes because I promised that 

I’d fight for them.  I told them that I’d fight for fair funding, and that if we 

didn’t get equitable funding, that we would look to sue the State. 

 We are in the process of reaching out now to other districts -- 

there are approximately 200 districts that are similarly underfunded -- to 

fight together to save the future, our future in New Jersey. 

 In closing, we do not need Band-Aids, grandstanding, or new 

bills rife with pork, fat, and favors.  We need action, property tax relief, and 

funding for our schools that does not depend upon property taxes. 

 We in Monroe Township are prepared to take action.  There 

are districts across the state filled with people who are just as fed up.  The 

only way to win this is to fix this. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you. 

 Would you like to speak? 

K A T H Y   K O L U P A N O W I C H:  I don’t think I have much to 

add to what they’ve said, except that Monroe Township is a vastly growing 

community.  

 We have students who are coming to our schools for the 

wonderful educational programs we have.  And we have a lot of special 

education students coming because we have great in-district programs. 
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 Our -- half of our population -- almost 60 percent of our 

population is senior citizens on fixed incomes in gated communities.  And 

they are having a problem with our property taxes -- increased property 

taxes, and funding the majority of our school budget.  And I think we owe it 

to them, who have worked all their lives, to be able to retire and enjoy their 

retirement lives; to be able to give them some help in reducing their 

property taxes. 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Certainly. 

 Thank you. 

 Would anyone-- 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Just a-- 

 SENATOR CUNNINGHAM:  Senator Oroho. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Yes, just a real quick comment. 

 First of all, Monroe Township -- you guys get the persistence 

award because you were down at Kingsway as well. (laughter)   

 MR. CHIARELLA:  Yes. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  So very good; I know a lot more about 

Monroe Township now than--  

 But also, you bring up very good points, with respect to -- you 

mentioned the Council on Affordable Housing and the regulations coming 

out of Trenton, and how that affects the major development that you’ve 

had.  And I mentioned the Highlands issue, and I mentioned the Pinelands 

issue -- regulations coming out of Trenton have a major impact.  And that’s 

something that any formula has to take into consideration.  Because some 

of the (indiscernible) we have in the Highlands area--  Our population is 

way down because of the Highlands area, and the enrollment is way down --  
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and the adjustments have to be made -- and being pushed into your area; 

which is affecting you in another direction. 

 So it’s just the panel -- we need to take that into consideration.  

The things we do in Trenton affect different parts of the state, obviously, 

differently. 

 But I appreciate your mentioning about the Council on 

Affordable Housing, because I know up in my area of the state, we have a 

lot in foreclosure and a lot of vacant homes that were never taken into 

consideration. 

 So thank you. 

 MR. CHIARELLA:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you, Senator. 

 As soon as you started talking about affordable housing, I was 

like, “Oh, my God; no.” (laughter)  This is-- 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Well, one more added to the list. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Let’s do this one first. 

 But again, thank you, and thank you for-- 

 SENATOR OROHO:  But you always tackle the tough ones. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you; thank you for your 

consistency. 

 Next, we’re going to call up Donna Tartza, District 

Representative, Perth Amboy AFTNJ: Patricia Paradiso, President, Perth 

Amboy AJTNJ; Ms. Cecilia Zalkind, President and CEO, of Advocates for 

Children of New Jersey; and Timothy McCorkell, Superintendent, 

Monmouth County Vo-Tech. 
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 And for messing anyone’s name up, I apologize again. 

(laughter)  But I am going to ask if you can please look -- pay attention to 

the time, because we’re running beyond.  We have the clock there.  I don’t 

want to interrupt people as they’re speaking. 

 So whoever wants to start. 

P A T R I C I A   P A R A D I S O:  I’ll go; I’ll go first. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Okay. 

 You need the microphone, please. 

 MS. PARADISO:  Thank you for inviting us and letting us 

speak.  I appreciate you doing this for us. 

 I’m an elementary school teacher, first and foremost; and I’m 

the President of my local union. 

 So as an elementary school teacher, I understand the meaning 

of the word fair. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Say your name, please, for the record. 

 MS. PARADISO:  Oh, excuse me.  My name is Pat Paradiso. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 MS. PARADISO:  You were close. (laughter) 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  I was close; sorry. 

 MS. PARADISO:  As an elementary school teacher, I 

understand the meaning of the word fair.  In fact, we use the word fair a lot 

in elementary school.  We use it to teach division, and we use to teach 

fractions.  My 3rd graders are keenly aware of what it means to get a fair 

share. 

 But in elementary school we’re usually talking about cookies, or 

candy, or prizes from the treasure box.  As adults we develop a deeper 
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understanding of what it means to be fair.  As adults we begin to equate 

fairness with justice.  When it comes to school funding, fair means giving 

our students what they need to be successful.  That is the just thing to do. 

 I’m sure we can all agree that needs are not distributed fairly 

among our students.  Students are not coming into our school with 

equivalent needs.  Some students have difficult lives and face many 

challenges; it is just a fact of life.  Our schools become a lifeline to them. 

 In Perth Amboy we have a large immigrant population.  We 

frequently get students into our schools who have little or no formal 

education.  It takes resources to give these students a fair chance.  We 

depend on just State funding for these resources. 

 When Perth Amboy was fully funded, we had Blue Ribbon 

schools in the District.  We had sufficient support staff and a variety of 

before or afterschool programs.  We were able to plan, based on the needs 

of our students. 

 When school districts are not fully funded, they generally make 

cuts to staff and programs, regardless of the needs of our students.  Is that 

fair; is that just? 

 I understand that the Perth Amboy Public School District is 

currently underfunded by $8.3 million.  That kind of money could make a 

big difference to our students.  It could mean that all of our students could 

have access to afterschool tutoring; or that our elementary schools could 

hire an additional school counselor, or a mental health professional; all 

things that we need. 

 I have also been told that the Governor’s plan would cut $92.1 

million, or 57 percent of our State aid.  That would be devastating to our 
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students.  I can’t even picture in my head what the fallout from that would 

look like. 

 School funding should not be subject to political whim.  This 

inconsistent funding destabilizes education and it jeopardizes our students; 

and our students deserve better.  And I’m glad you’re doing this for us, 

listening to us. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

D O N N A   T A R T Z A:  Good afternoon. 

 My name is Donna Tartza, and I’m a health and physical 

education teacher in Perth Amboy; and I am also the District 

Representative for the Perth Amboy AFT. 

 We’ve heard a lot of speaking about how school funding affects 

the taxpayers, and I’m here to speak on how it affects the students. 

 Whenever we hear about budget cuts in education, they affect 

special subjects, such as health, physical education, art, music, cooking, 

woodworking, etc.  Whenever there’s a reduction in revenue to the schools, 

the areas that are looked to cut first are before and after school programs, as 

well as the special subjects that I mentioned. 

 Although 150 minutes per week of health and physical 

education are mandated by law, administrators have become quite creative 

on how it’s enforced.  In most cases, they don’t hire trained professionals 

certified in health and physical education.  Currently, 17 percent of our 

children, ages 8 to 11, are obese; as well as 34 percent of the adults in this 

country.  One hundred and forty-seven billion dollars is spent annually on 

obesity health costs.   
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 Exercise and activity habits start early in life.  The development 

of a healthy lifestyle translates to reduced health risks, such as heart disease, 

diabetes, high blood pressure, high cholesterol, and asthma as adults.  Lack 

of funding may be the short-term fix, but will lead to higher health care 

costs later.   

 Physical wellness is not inherent; it doesn’t come naturally.  It 

requires teaching.  Health and physical education teachers focus on the 

skills needed to establish and sustain an active lifestyle.  In 2013, 44 

percent of our schools had to reduce elective classes; 70 percent increased 

class size.  Studies have shown that participating in the arts teaches children 

to make good judgements, solve problems, and celebrate multiple 

perspectives.  Elective subjects provide the spark to keep students coming to 

school; this is where they meet their friends, they find common interest.  

Rarely does that happen in algebra class.  They have fun; when students are 

having fun, they are inspired to become lifelong learners. 

 This is also where we bridge the gap in the broad spectrum of 

learning styles.  These classes are not about who’s smarter than who.  When 

afterschool programs are cut, many students go home to empty houses 

because their parents are working.  They become bored; boredom leads to 

alcohol and drug experimentation.  Thus we need professional educators to 

inform our students of the dangers of these activities, and we need to have 

money in our budgets to provide meaningful programs to spur our students’ 

interests. 

 When it comes to creating budgets, school districts like to fund 

the academics first.  Although they’re important, not all students are going 

to college -- whether it be lack of funding or a lack of desire.  We need to 
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put funds into vocational programs such as woodshop, auto shop, and 

cooking, as well.  Training in these areas can lead to future employment for 

those who are not moving on to higher education, or can put them in a 

position where they can work in a field to earn a wage that will make it 

affordable for them to attend a college.  

 Education funding needs to be available to educate the whole 

student to make them healthy, happy, career-ready -- whatever their career 

may be. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

C E C I L I A   Z A L K I N D:  Good afternoon.  

 I’m Cecilia Zalkind; I’m President of Advocates for Children of 

New Jersey, which is a state-based child advocacy organization located in 

Newark. 

 I came here primarily to talk about the importance of preschool 

in the school funding formula.  But I’d just like, for a minute, to bring the 

discussion back to children. 

 I think the School Funding Reform Act is based on an 

understanding that not all children start school in the same place.  That 

children--  It acknowledges that children in low-income communities don’t 

have the opportunities -- as they enter school and continue in school -- that 

children in other communities have. This is certainly a premise that our 

Supreme Court decision in Abbott vs. Burke was based upon. 

 I think what was important about the SFRA -- that it also 

acknowledged that not all low-income children live in the Abbott districts; 

49 percent of children live in other communities, and deserve the same 

support and assistance.   
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 These children don’t leave the challenges they face at the 

schoolhouse door.  We look at our own community in Newark; we’ve done 

some recent work where we’ve met with parents across the city.  And I 

don’t think that any of us in this room really understand the challenges that 

families face in unstable housing, hunger, poor health, community violence, 

unsafe neighborhoods.  Kids don’t leave this behind; this all impacts on 

their school success. 

 This formula, I think, acknowledges that; and it must continue 

to be funded based on that premise. 

 I’ll be very brief on preschool.  I submitted written testimony. 

 Preschool has to be an essential component of school funding.  

To me, it is the best feature of the Abbott vs. Burke school decision; it has an 

unparalleled track record of success.  We have independent studies -- some 

done right here in New Jersey, by the National Institute of Early Education 

at Rutgers -- that demonstrates that children who have two years of high-

quality preschool continue those gains throughout the elementary years.  

The latest NIEER study tracked children though the 5th grade, and showed 

that those gains continued. 

 This is a program of proven success; states across the country 

come to us to find out about preschool.  It should be included.  

  It has to be expanded.  The SFRA promised high-quality 

preschool to thousands more children; they’ve been waiting.  If you look 

back over the eight years that the SFRA has not been funded for preschool, 

we’re talking about hundreds of thousands of children who could have 

benefited from that strong start in life. 
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 And finally, our existing programs must be maintained.  They 

have suffered at the cost -- with flat-funding, as well.  And those existing 

programs -- in communities that some of you represent -- are struggling to 

maintain those high-quality preschool programs that are such an important 

ingredient of school success. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

T I M O T H Y   M.   M c C O R K E L L:  Senator Sweeney and 

members of the Select Committee, good afternoon. 

 I am Tim McCorkell, Superintendent of the Monmouth 

County Vocational School District, and currently serve as President of the 

New Jersey Council of County Vocational-Technical Schools. 

 Thank you for the opportunity to speak to you today. 

 I want to focus my brief remarks on the special concerns of 

New Jersey’s 21 county vocational technical school districts; which are part 

of the school funding formula, but different in the way we are funded at the 

local level.  We face a special challenge with respect to school funding 

because we have an economic mission, and need to remain responsive to 

emerging workforce needs.  County vocational schools cannot simply put 

new programs or equipment upgrades on hold when funding gets tight.  If 

we don’t keep up with industry needs, our programs will become irrelevant, 

and our students will not be prepared for tomorrow’s jobs. 

 County vocational schools do not have the ability to raise taxes.  

We are dependent upon our county freeholders for our local tax levy.  The 

counties are struggling with their own levy cap, and many vocational 
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schools have received little or no increase in country tax levy support for the 

past seven years.   

 Certainly, we understand the need to begin reallocating State 

aid based upon current enrollment.  As you seek to restore equitable 

funding, we hope you will address the unique situation of county-based 

career and technical education.  In particular, the elimination of adjustment 

aid should be approached carefully for county vocational-technical school 

districts with stable or growing enrollment.   

 Adjustment aid was a key component of the SFRA that helped 

county vocational schools transition from a per-pupil categorical aid for 

vocational, adult, and special education programs, to a wealth-based 

formula that eliminated all support for adult education.  While we agree 

that adjustment aid should be phased-out for districts with declining 

enrollment, it would be difficult for growing vocational school districts to 

lose aid without another source of revenue to fill the gap.  My District 

would be especially hard hit by the proposed reallocation of State aid, and 

we could not expect our county to provide increased funding to fill the 

deficit.  And asking local districts to increase their tuition contribution to 

the local share of our costs would put an additional stress on communities 

already constrained by their own levy caps. 

 So for the next year, we ask the Legislature to avoid any aid 

reductions for county vocational schools so funding reallocations do not end 

up increasing costs for local districts, and possibly limiting opportunities for 

students to attend county vocational schools. 

 And for the longer term, the Legislature may want to consider 

restoring per-pupil aid for county vocational school students, rather than 
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the current wealth-based way, so that all counties are funded equitably for 

these critical programs. 

 Thank you for your commitment to restoring fair enrollment-

driven funding, and for your continued support of New Jersey’s county 

vocational-technical programs. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Are there any questions from the panel? (no response) 

 I just want to make one comment about preschool. 

 I’m glad you brought it up.  Here, we were doing tours, and we 

have had a lot of conversations about education.  And in New Brunswick, 

they were measuring children who went through preschool -- how they did 

compared to children who didn’t -- on the PARCC test.  I’m not arguing 

about the PARCC test, good or bad (laughter); but just a test.  I don’t need 

to open up another can of worms. 

 But the kids who went through preschool -- because the 

argument was always that it’s not retained -- they were doing 20 percent 

better, on average.  So it’s something that can’t be lost, and it’s something 

that we hope -- by getting funding fairly back into the districts, that they 

can create and expand pre-K, because it actually is one of the programs that 

you really see the results of.  And that’s why we are looked at nationally. 

 So thank you for bringing that up. 

 MS. ZALKIND:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  It’s a very important component. 

 Thank you; we’re going to call the next panel. 

 ALL:  Thank you. 
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 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Elisabeth Ginsburg, Executive 

Director, Garden State Coalition of Schools; Jorden Schiff, Superintendent, 

Hillsborough Township Public Schools; and Mr. Charles Sampson, 

Superintendent, Freehold Regional School District. 

E L I S B E T H   G I N S B U R G:  Good morning, Senator Sweeney, 

and members of the panel. 

 Good morning -- good afternoon.  Chuck Sampson of Freehold 

Regional, unfortunately, was not able to be with us today.  But with me 

today is Dr. Jorden Schiff, who is the President of the Garden State 

Coalition; and also Superintendent in Hillsborough. 

 I should add that the Coalition is a collection of about 100 

districts, some of whom are here in Middlesex County. 

 We were born 25 years ago when a collection of educators got 

together to discuss school funding.  So everything comes full circle 

eventually. 

 Garden State believes that SFRA has withstood the 

constitutional challenges, and is a good formula -- when it is run every year, 

updated in accordance with its own mechanisms, and fully funded.  

However, given that those things have not happened, we also believe that 

it’s time to take a thoughtful look at SFRA in light of the economic and 

demographic shifts that have taken place in various parts of the state in the 

past nine years. 

 If adjustment aid is redistributed, it should be done gradually 

so that no child is impoverished in order to provide more resources for 

another. 
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 It will take some new money, and probably more State 

revenues, to fully fund SFRA; but we can at least begin moving in the right 

direction.  And we applaud the intent of this Committee to move us in the 

right direction. 

 And now I will hand it over to the expert, Dr. Schiff. 

J O R D E N   S C H I F F,  Ed. D.:  Thank you, Betsy. 

 With the time running long and blood sugar running low 

(laughter), I’m going to be very quick in my comments. 

 You have my testimony in front of you, but I’m going to direct 

your attention to some of the charts. 

 What I would like to do, in the brief time that I have, is talk 

about five different areas that you may want to consider as we get on a glide 

path to try to resolve some of these issues that have been illustrated today. 

 So the first chart that you’re looking at is actually comparing 

the percentage increase in the State budget as a whole, versus the 

percentage increase of direct aid to schools.  Direct aid to schools is what I 

call kid aid; it’s the aid that funds all of the expenditures in our public 

schools.  And our budgets are a reflection of our priorities; we would agree 

with that, certainly.  But yet when we look at the extra dollars that have 

come into our State budget, as a percentage of the whole, direct aid to 

schools has been much, much less.   

 I would direct your attention to the second chart there, which 

actually looks at dollar increases, year-over-year, from Fiscal Year 2013 to 

Fiscal Year 2017.  You look at Fiscal Year 2016, you see that the State had 

additional revenues of close $1 billion.  These are new monies; $1 billion, at 

the same time that State aid remained flat.  I think it speaks volumes about 
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our priorities when State aid brought in $1 billion, and no increase occurred 

to the direct aid to schools -- aid for kids. 

 So what we’re proposing is that we make sure that our priorities 

for kids is not any more or any less than what the percentage increase is 

going to be for the entire budget; that those bars -- that are high blue bars 

and low red bars -- are pretty consistent, year after year.  That would be 

one. 

 And then as we move into trying to solve some of these 

inequities that have occurred, we have to prioritize the schools that are 

significantly underfunded through SFRA, number one; are taxing above the 

local fair share; and number three, are below adequacy.  And you heard 

some testimony today from those districts.  They must be prioritized; it’s a 

moral imperative -- very, very different for those particular districts. 

 But the State can’t do it alone.  Local communities are going to 

have to help, in terms of making sure that our kids don’t fall behind. 

 And the third idea that we have is to give back additional local 

control to your local school board. Who best to understand the impacts of 

taxation policy than the people who actually live in that community and are 

paying those taxes?  A great deal of that has been removed.  And let me give 

you an illustrative point from Hillsborough Township, where I currently 

serve as Superintendent.  This past year I had to cut 10 teachers; 10 

classroom teachers.  And we went to cap; we went to 2 percent.  The 

increase for the average homeowners in Hillsborough Township was $40 for 

the year.  We cut 10 teachers; $40.  Why was that the case?  Well, our 

ratable base grew.  So our municipal government did a wonderful job at 
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getting additional building and communities into our school -- that lowered 

the levy across the community.  

 So every community has a unique situation that has to be 

addressed by the local people, versus Trenton bureaucracy. That’s very 

important. 

 And two other quick things -- I see my time is running out -- 

but two other quick things in terms of cost containment.  One of the areas 

that’s a very large part of school districts is funding the needs for special 

education.  These are some of the neediest kids who we educate, and it’s 

growing above the 2 percent.  So one idea that we have in order to control 

those costs is to model the SEMI program.  The SEMI program is a program 

for children who qualify for Medicaid.  SEMI stands for Special Education 

Medicaid Initiative.  And some of those services that we provide for poor 

children who have special needs are reimbursed; we get that back to the 

district.  So the insurance comes back to the district and helps offset some 

of those costs.  What we ask for your consideration -- this would have to be 

done legislatively -- is to have parents who have certain special education 

needs -- and these are what we call related services: occupational therapy, 

physical therapy, speech and language therapy, nursing therapies, also 

testing -- could also qualify for someone’s personal insurance.  That they 

can send a claim to their own insurance company, but the district would 

pay any out-of-pocket expenses.  That would be a huge, huge savings to all 

districts across the State of New Jersey.  However, you have to protect those 

families from predatory insurance companies that would raise premiums 

just because they have special needs children.  So that is one area that you 

could have significant savings. 
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 The other savings -- and finally -- is in the area of out-of-district 

placements.  Currently, across the entire state, we have Educational Service 

Commissions -- and you actually heard some testimony from one of the 

Superintendents -- those Commissions, part of their mission is to provide 

services to the county, to the local districts in their community to provide 

special education services that can’t be provided in the local districts.  

Attached to that last page is an analysis of similar programs in the Somerset 

County Ed Services Commission, compared to similar programs for out-of-

district -- many private and for-profit services that are there.  And as you 

can see, per pupil, per student, the savings are extraordinary. 

 So I ask that we give some consideration in that way, in order 

to ensure that our children -- our special needs children continue to have 

access to wonderful programs; but to do it in a way that’s fiscally 

responsible.  To also tap the opportunity that if a parent is already paying a 

premium for their health insurance that covers certain services that could be 

provided in the local school district, that they submit that claim to their 

private insurance carrier and that the local school district would pick up any 

out-of-pocket expenses; while making sure that the insurance programs are 

not predatory in nature and don’t raise premiums just because a client has a 

special needs child.  And to look at new monies in the budget, and make 

sure that we don’t deprioritize the children of the State of New Jersey. 

 Thank you very much. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Senator Oroho. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Yes, just to make--  And thank you very 

much.  Actually, some testimony, that when -- you gave some ideas of how 
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we might to look to reduce and costs and efficiencies; so I really appreciate 

that. 

 The issue of the new revenues; I know Senator Ruiz had 

brought this up the other day.  Obviously, we’d love as much money as we 

could, but the new revenues that went in -- I think we have to also 

recognize that those new revenues went into making payments for things 

that the prior Administrations and Legislatures -- Republican and Democrat 

-- didn’t do.  The pension contributions used a lot of those new revenues.  

The idea that the post-employment benefits that are paid for retired 

teachers who are paid at the State level -- a lot of those new revenue is for 

that.  And also the Social Security costs, the FICA costs of active teachers 

today who are paid at the State level.  So we have to take that into 

consideration as well. 

 DR. SCHIFF:  Absolutely.  And we’re fully aware of that. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Right. 

 DR. SCHIFF:  What I’m saying is that it’s a false choice to say 

we’re going to do one, but not the other. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  Yes. 

 DR. SCHIFF:  We need to make sure--  And now we’re going 

on the fifth, sixth year of flat-funding for many districts.  How many more 

years are we going to say, “We do this for the adults, but we don’t do it for 

the children”?  So we have to be able to do both. 

 SENATOR OROHO:  I think the one thing that your examples 

and our examples demonstrate is, you can make promises, but you have to 

make payments. 

 DR. SCHIFF:  Thank you. 
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 SENATOR OROHO:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Anyone else? (no response) 

 If not, thank you. 

 DR. SCHIFF:  Thank you, sir. 

 MS. GINSBURG:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  The last panel is going to be Mr. 

Michael Salvatore, Superintendent, Long Branch School District; Ms. 

Teresa Rafferty, Superintendent, Piscataway School District; and David 

Oliveira (indicating pronunciation) -- I guess, School Business 

Administrator, Piscataway.   

 I apologize. 

D A V I D   O L I V E I R A:  No problem. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  It shouldn’t be that hard, but I’m 

struggling with names today. (laughter) 

 Who wants to start? 

T E R E S A   M.   R A F F E R T Y:  Are we on?  Okay. 

 On a macro level--  Thank you, Senator Sweeney; I thank you 

very much for hosting this hearing and drawing attention to the problem.  

This has been something that has affected our community for a long time. 

 On a macro level, I think you’ve heard what some of the issues 

are, so I want to just really explain how it affects Piscataway. 

 Piscataway is a community in Middlesex County with about 

7,500 students, pre-K to 12.  A third of our students are African American; 

about 30 percent are Indian/Middle Eastern; and about 17, 18 percent each 

Hispanic.  About 40 percent of our students are on free or reduced lunch.  

So we’re a very lower-middle class community, if you will. 
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 For many years -- before SFRA, and certainly since then -- 

Piscataway is underfunded. Piscataway residents make up the difference in 

our school budget.  They pay 81 percent of our school’s operating budget.  

You heard Monroe say they were at 88 percent; we’re at 81 percent.  But by 

comparison, Old Bridge gets 64 percent.  Old Bridge taxpayers pay 64 

percent of the local budget.  And the list goes on, and on, and on -- where 

communities are picking up disproportionate shares. 

 I’m not suggesting that we take funds from these communities.  

These are my colleagues; I live in Senator Thompson’s District.  But what 

I’m saying is there’s never been any explanation for these disparities, nor 

any attempt to equalize the tax burden. 

 Piscataway gets $2,100 per pupil in State aid, yet we are 

entitled to $37 million.  If we received our fair share, we’d be getting over 

$5,000 in State aid, and could roll back the taxes on the average 

homeowner over $1,000. 

 Towns such as South Brunswick, East Brunswick, South 

Plainfield, Highland Park -- they all get more State aid than Piscataway.  

Again, I’m not suggesting we take money away.  What I’m suggesting is we 

try to get some explanation and start the process of gradually fixing that 

situation. 

 As I said, our taxpayers pick up the disproportionate share.  

That’s why we’re able to offer dual-enrollment programs in mathematics, 

business, biomedical science.  The White House has cited the academic 

performance among our Hispanic students improvements in that area. 

We’re recognized for our literacy programs. 
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 I know the State doesn’t have the capacity to fix the problem in 

one year.  But what I’m suggesting are two things:  One, we gradually 

transition responsibility for funding schools to local taxpayers in 

communities that are financially capable of doing this.  We all know what 

communities we’re talking about; we’re talking about pockets of affluent 

residents who live in Hoboken, Jersey City, and other places where they are 

not paying their fair share.  I’m not saying to take money from children 

living in poverty; I am suggesting that affluent residents pay their fair share. 

 Secondly, we need to stop increasing State aid in suburban 

communities.  Everybody, over the past few years, has gotten a little bump 

in State aid. Stop increasing aid in suburban communities that receive a 

higher percentage than the majority.  Spread it among the most 

underfunded and get us all to the same level of percentage of State aid.  If 

the pot of money is limited -- and I understand it is -- but please spread it 

equally. 

 Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 Who’s next? 

M I C H A E L   S A L V A T O R E,   Ph. D.:  Good afternoon, 

everybody.  The end is near, so be patient.  You have been very patient so 

far, and I appreciate it. 

 I’d like to thank Senator Sweeney for inviting me here today 

and affording me the opportunity to address you on school funding, which I 

like to call the economics of human development. 

 My name Michael Salvatore; and for the past 20 years I’ve 

worked as a teacher, a Principal, District Administrator, Assistant 
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Superintendent and, for the past six years, I’ve worked as Superintendent of 

Schools for the city of Long Branch. 

 I like to think I’ve contributed to the greater educational 

community.  I’m the past President of the Monmouth County 

Superintendents’ Roundtable; I’m the current President of Great Schools of 

New Jersey, which works with the Education Law Center and New Jersey 

Association of School Administrators.  And we help to serve as a resource 

for over 180 districts that are underfunded and service moderate- to high-

poverty level students. 

 You know, many educated professionals--  If I had a nickel for 

every time that I heard, “Those Abbott districts--” And I don’t know how 

we became the former Abbott; but we are the former Abbott--  “Those Abbott 

districts suck up all the money.”  And you’ve heard it; I’ve been in circles.  

I’m a representative of a former Abbott district.  And guess what?  We’re 

underfunded; we’re drastically underfunded. 

 Let me explain.  Most people think it’s a suburban or rural 

issue.  In the past five years, we’ve had enrollment growth of more than 

1,100 students.  Our newest families entering the city are part of a changing 

demographic, and they require unique programs and specialized staff; their 

living conditions--  Let me tell you, the living conditions are extremely 

impoverished, many of them living in single rooms -- an entire family in a 

single rooms.  They don’t have modern technology, obviously; they don’t 

even have a quiet place to read, many of our kids. 

  We are the largest city in Monmouth County, and we have the 

most families living in poverty, and we are drastically underfunded by $13 
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million.  In order to serve our newest families’ educational needs, we would 

have to add more than $1 million in faculty.  

 To this point, in order to preserve some quality and  protect our 

innovative practices, we’ve taken an aggressive approach to revamping 

health care; we’ve planned an assertive path toward energy conservation.  

And that has yielded some returns.  But without additional revenue, these 

practices will be lost.  The conversation surrounding school funding has to 

begin with a deeper understanding of inequality.  Because today my own 

personal children will go home from school; they’ll find a quiet place in my 

house to do their homework.  If they get confused, my boys will probably go 

on the computer, google Khan Academy, and watch a video to relearn a 

concept.   

 The reality is, I’ve made an investment in their education.  And 

many of our families can’t make the investment in their education, outside 

of school.   

 A growing field of research is contributing to a series of coined 

phrases specifying gaps and divides, which are real; these gaps are real.  

There’s a word gap before kids come to school, age 3.  They’re talking about 

a 30 million word gap.  There’s a digital divide; there’s the income gap; the 

opportunity gap -- the gaps go on and on; and you have all heard about the 

achievement gap.  They may have different labels, but they’re rooted in the 

lack of investments in education, both at home and in school. 

 Today it appears to me that both sides of the aisles are actually 

trying to work on something, which is great.  From my lens, I’m just a 

motivated educator; I’m a proud parent, an impassioned district leader.  But 

the reality is, my advice would be go back and look at the foundational 
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factors for SFRA, if you haven’t done so already.  And it takes a lot of time.  

Because it’s not just a per-pupil allotment.  There were several factors 

designed to what came up with that per-pupil dollar.  Now, some small 

tweaks made in the area of transportation or energy costs that were 

originally allotted -- that might give you the dollars you’re looking for.  A 

fraction will help. 

 Again, I’d like to thank all of you for giving me the opportunity 

to speak today. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Could I just say something? 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Yes; Senator Doherty. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  Thank you for your passion.  I like 

your first name, Mike. (laughter) 

 DR. SALVATORE:  Oh, Mike Salvatore. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  It’s a good name, good solid name. 

 DR. SALVATORE:  Yes. 

 SENATOR DOHERTY:  I just wanted to point out there -- I 

just did a quick look on Zillow.  And you’re in Long Branch, in a house in 

Long Branch -- $325,000 house; the property tax bill, according to Zillow, is 

$4,000.  In my town -- in my county in Warren County, my hometown --

that house is on the books and paying property taxes at $12,000.  So 

similarly situated folks, living in the same exact price house -- $4,000 versus 

$12,000.  So I think we need to look at some of these inequities that exist 

in the system; and that’s a realty.  People are paying $8,000 more for a 

house that’s of the same value, and it’s not going up in value because no 

one can afford those property taxes. 
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 DR. SALVATORE:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  Anybody else? (no response) 

 If not--  

 MR. OLIVEIRA:  Senator, thank you. 

 SENATOR SWEENEY:  (Indiscernible); thank you. 

 I really appreciate everyone who came out, and your passion 

rings clear.  We really are not going to pit people against each other; you 

know, that’s not what the game here is.  The game is to get this full 

funding.   

 And we really believe we can get there.  And we’re going to 

keep the heat up until we get it done.  That’s why we’re doing these 

hearings. 

 Our next hearing is going to be in Newark on February 9.  And 

we’re going right in through the eye of the tiger.  Newark is a district that’s 

underfunded by $90 million, if we fully funded the formula.  Imagine what 

you could do if you were funded properly, and we can fund properly.  We 

just have a lot of work to do to get there. 

 Anyone else? (no response) 

 If not, I want to thank you all for testifying.  And you have the 

parents; the parents need to speak to legislators.  Enough is enough. 

 Thank you. 

 All:  Thank you. 
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